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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
EIE kS

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately RMB831.1 million, representing an increase of
4.0% from approximately RMB798.9 million recorded in 2015.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to approximately RMB445.7 million, representing a decrease of
1.1% from approximately RMB450.9 million recorded in 2015.

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent for
the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately
RMB206.6 million, representing a decrease of 9.6% from
approximately RMB228.5 million recorded in 2015.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB7.2 cents per ordinary share for 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (5 YEARS)
AIFSiEE (55F)

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last  EEEAE H% 2 KB Z W ERR M HERER 24K
five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial &EEMNEETRPBEE ¥4 EEREBEYZ
statements and prospectus, is set out below: BEHIWOT -

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—-RLFE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—AFE —T-RF —T--NF —FT-=F —T-—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

RESULTS S
REVENUE A 831,149 798,861 668,426 530,433 337,125
Cost of sales SHERA CELIAER)) (347,989) (281,928)  (217,364)  (144,226)
GROSS PROFIT EF 445,696 450,872 386,498 313,069 192,899
Other income and gains H AU A K e as 8,426 11,875 5,877 11,519 5,051
Selling and distribution expenses 5 M A& $#5F X (81,225) (75,073) (40,338) (25,679) (24,104)
Administrative expenses THRAX (83,065) (80,265) (81,444) (74,094) (22,899)
Other expenses HEmHx (1,271) (105) (1,512) (17) (35)
Finance costs b E AR (40,606) (32,609) (22,858) (17,646) (15,463)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B AT R E 247,955 274,695 246,223 207,152 135,449
Income tax expense IR EEa (41,319) (46,167) (34,620) (32,945) (37,011)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FARFHE 206,636 228,528 211,603 174,207 98,438
Attributable to: THIATFEN -

Owners of the parent ERAREAR A 206,636 228,528 211,603 174,207 98,438

ZENMEERAT —B-REER 03
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (5 YEARS) (CONTINUED)

AR5t 2 (55F) (18

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

TOTAL ASSETS BERE
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE
TOTAL EQUITY etk
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2016
—E-XRF

RMB’000
AR®T

3,164,133
(1,262,124)

1,902,009

E AERER

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H

2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RHEF ZET—MNF ZT—=F ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFITT ARETIT AREFTT ARETRT
2,298,666 1,936,466 728,669 478,197
(875,335)  (682,062) (432,343)  (345,087)
1,423,331 1,254,404 296,326 133,110




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRI|S

It is a great honour for me, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) of Honworld Group Limited (the “Company”
or “Lao Heng He"), to present the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “we”) for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are one of the leading manufacturers of condiment products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). We offer high quality
and healthy cooking wine as well as other condiments, including soy
sauce, vinegar, soybean paste and fermented bean curd. In 2016, we
were awarded various honours including “Top 100 Business Enterprises
in Zhejiang” (“MMIEE A1 %"), “Crucial Development Enterprises of
Zhejiang Province” (‘A L& EEIFF B 3”), “Three Famous’ Development
Pilot Enterprises of Zhejiang Province” (‘WL & [ =4 | 155 R BB %),
“Quality Award of Huzhou City Government” (/1 T Bt T & & #2”) and
“Premier Consumer Product of 2016 in the PRC” (“2F [ —Z— /N4
SHE S ). Moreover, we have been selected as the supplier of food
ingredients for the G20 Hangzhou Summit.

In 2016, as retail channels of regional small retailers and catering
channels are important components of the sales channels of our
condiment industry. In accordance with the market trend, the Group
considered that expanding the business in such channels can bring
about attractive growth opportunities in the future. Moreover, as the
declining trend of revenue and profit of the supermarket industry is still
unable to contain, the Group has adopted new distribution strategy
to explore our sales and marketing channels in diversifying manner.
The focus of sales and marketing this year has been shifted from
supermarkets distribution channel to integrating the retail channels of
dispersed regional small retailers and to exploring catering channels and
e-commerce channels. Moreover, diversified sales channels are beneficial
to the sustainable development of the Group. In order to support the
Company’s diversified channel development strategy, on the one hand,
we have invested more resources in the building up of sales team and
channel expansion. The sales and marketing promotional employees
employed by our Group increased from 61 as of 31 December 2015
to 240 as of 31 December 2016; on the other hand, we have devoted
approximately RMB50.0 million to appoint Mr. Nicholas Tse as our brand
ambassador of “Lao Heng He” cooking wine in Mainland China and
sponsored Chef Nic (+=3&%£1K), a cooking reality show hosted by Mr,
Nicholas Tse; we also devoted RMB27.0 million in media advertising.
We believe that driven by the marketing resources we invested,
the popularity of Mr. Nicholas Tse and the influence of our media
advertisement will more effectively promote the “Lao Heng He” brand
to the public and thereby enhancing our reputation, complementing our
future sales and marketing efforts, and establishing a strong foundation
for our endeavor in expanding diversified market channels and future
sales growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TRH|E (7@

As a result of the expansion of the sales and marketing channel, we
have adjusted our product mix correspondingly to better cope with
the change in marketing and sales strategy. In this connection, the
proportion of sales of our medium-range products had a certain degree
of growth compared with that in 2015. On the other hand, as we
focused in diversifying our sales and marketing channels this year, our
sales and marketing resources devoted in the supermarket channel has
decreased as a result.

In 2016, our key product, cooking wine, continued to be our major
source of revenue, representing 74.7% of the total revenue. We focused
our sales and marketing promotion resources on enhancing sales of our
cooking wine, to capitalize on the market strength of “Lao Heng He” (“&
[B70”) brand to explore diversified sales channel.

The Company has attained the goal for base wine stock disclosed in the
Interim Report of 2015; basically, the base wine stock is able to satisfy
the demand of the Company’s business in the future.

Through our distribution networks, we continued to deeply penetrate
our products to third and fourth-tier cities and expand our customer
base with the goal of distributing our products all over China. We
have approximately 531 new distributors (of which 193 are in Eastern
China, 135 are in Central and North Western China, 96 are in Southern
China, 69 are in Northern China and 38 are in North Eastern China).
Our customers are mainly located in Eastern China, Southern China
and Northern China. As at 31 December 2016, we have a total of 898
distributors.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s revenue reached
approximately RMB831.1 million (2015: RMB798.9 million), representing
an increase of approximately 4.0% over 2015. Profit attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the parent was approximately RMB206.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB228.5 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 9.6% over 2015, which is
mainly attributable to the increase in advertising expenses and finance
costs and the decrease in gross profit margin.

In 2016, we improved and expanded our production facilities at our
plants in Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, acquired new production
equipment and implemented various technical improvements to our
production process. This will equip us to cope with the continuous
growing market demand for green and healthy condiment products of
premium quality. On the other hand, in order to reduce the risk arising
from the increasing capital expenditure scale, we increased prepayments
for non-current assets to lock up the costs of major materials related to
capital expenditure.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FTREHRE (@

Our profitability is mainly affected by the product price and our cost
of sales, our sales and marketing strategy and the product structure
and mix. We are actively monitoring any potential risk factors that may
impact on our financial results, and trying to mitigate any increasing
costs and expenses with more efficient operation, higher profit margins
and better product mix. However, the Group does face certain risks in
its business development, which include: 1) risk of significant increase
in the cost of production, such as increase in the prices of agricultural
sideline products, packaging cost or labour cost; 2) negative impact on
our sales due to the changing consumer habits for condiment products;
3) the greater-than-expected cost from market expansion; 4) the
possibility of failure of our new products to obtain market recognition in
the short run; and 5) increasing complexity of managing sales policies
and credit terms due to rapid expansion of our distributors.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking into 2017, we will maintain the strategy of improving and
diversifying our products, amidst the challenges brought by the complex
and changing market conditions to the development of our industry,
in order to maintain a steady growth of our business and continue
to generate returns for our shareholders. Condiment products, being
plentiful in terms of type and with a range of diversity, are not only the
necessities closely associated with diet, but also closely linked with the
development of industries such as the catering and food processing.
In this connection, we hope to allocate resources in a more sensible
manner through diversifying our distribution channels, so as to optimise
the mix of these distribution channels and establish a strong foundation
for growth in our sales in the coming years.

In the course of the “New Normal” (“#7 % "), the Chinese Central
Government advocates a sustainable domestic consumption-led
growth and quality improvement over quantitative growth by aiding
the technology upgrade of traditional manufacturing and respecting
craftsmanship. Accordingly, a consumption upgrade of condiment
products will be a trend in the future. We are optimistic towards our
potential in the condiments market with our naturally-brewed condiment
products of safer, healthier and higher quality.

Meanwhile, with the call for “Reform of the Supply Side” (“ft45 A2k
%) by the Chinese Government, there will be a breakthrough for the
condiments industry which has a low concentration and where great
difference in development exists. In this connection, with the excellent
brand awareness, modernised traditional craftsmanship, mature quality
management and monitoring system and comprehensive system for
research and development, products of our “Lao Heng He” brand will
be afforded more room of development, which further pull away our
distance from our competitors in terms of level of development.

As a result of the foregoing, we believe products of our “Lao Heng He”
brand will continue to expand in China.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TRH|E (7@

GOALS AND STRATEGIES

In 2017, our business strategy will pursue the “DIVERSIFIED” (“% 7T
1b”) strategy, focusing our investment and resources on exploring sales
channels and our product offerings. We focus on our sales strategy
around our consumers and endeavour to achieve higher customer
loyalty. We focus on providing safer and healthier naturally-brewed
condiment products with premium quality to consumers.

We are determined to fortify our position in the condiments industry
through expanding our sales channel in diversifying manner, with the
assistance of our leadership position in the cooking wine industry. In
order to better accommodate our strategy to expand our channels
in diversifying manner and deepen the penetration of our distribution
network to third and fourth-tier cities, we plan to continue to ensure
appropriate allocation of resources in sales and marketing and
advertising spending, to raise our customers’ awareness to the products
of our “Lao Heng He” brand, and also to focus on introducing the
excellent quality and healthiness of our products to our consumers. To
better improve the experience of our customers, we will build two sales
teams. The first sales team will focus on exploring for and serving our
distributors, and supervising the implementation of our sales policies,
and the second distributor team will focus on serving marketing and
distribution policies of our key products and key outlets and promoting
our products to consumers. In respect of the expansion of distributors,
we will continue to cooperate with capable distributors among our
diversified channels, and continue to actively improve the market share
of our “Lao Heng He” brand in the PRC market. “Lao Heng He” aims to
become the top choice for consumers.

We also aim at improving the modernised traditional craftsmanship,
optimizing the quality management and monitoring system, and
increasing the capability in product research and development, through
research and development and innovation of traditional production
techniques, to ensure the consistent quality of excellence of “Lao Heng
He” brand.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FTREHRE (@

We have been improving our research and development capabilities
to focus on standardization of production process, new product
development and product improvement to prepare ourselves for future
development opportunities as well as guard against the increase of
raw material price and change in market demand. In response to the
rising manufacturing and logistics costs resulted from the influence of
policies like greener environment, structural adjustment, relaxation of
overcapacity and reduction of inventory (EIRIR « F&EH - EERE
£JETF) since 2016, we have raised the price of certain products of
the Group by 10% in February 2017. In the future, the Company will
appropriately adjust the selling price of our products according to the
market conditions from time to time.

We also pay close attention from time to time and act actively towards
the following risks that may be brought about by the growth. We will
adopt fine measures and upgrade the information technology system
in our management to respond to the management and administrative
complexity brought about by the fast expansion of our sales team. We
will provide all-rounded and systematic training to our sales personnel
to respond to the possible negative impact on the sales of our Group’s
products brought about by the sales personnel of insufficient quality.
We will improve our credit risk management system to respond to the
complexity of sales policies and credit terms management brought about
by the expansion in number of distributors. We will build information
sharing platform to strengthen internal communications to respond to
the negative impact on our sales and our distributors, which is caused
by the difference in pricing policy in different geographical locations
that leads to cross-sales of products to other exclusively-authorized
distribution areas.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to our Shareholders, Board members, management team and all our
employees, as well as our business partners and customers for their
continuous support and contribution to the Group.

Chen Weizhong
Chairman of the Board

30 March 2017
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ra&id

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman and CEO)

Mr. Sheng Mingjian

Mr. Wang Chao

Non-executive Director

Mr. Sun Qingdong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Shen Zhenchang

Mr. Lei Jiasu
Mr. Ma Chaosong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Au Wai Keung

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chen Weizhong
Mr. Au Wai Keung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ma Chaosong (Chairman)
Mr. Lei Jiasu

Mr. Shen Zhenchang

Mr. Sun Qingdong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Shen Zhenchang (Chairman)
Mr. Lei Jiasu
Mr. Ma Chaosong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
NIV ERE -

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lei Jiasu (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Chaosong
Mr. Shen Zhenchang

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Balidian Town

Food and Industrial Park
Wuxing District, Huzhou City
Zhejiang 313000, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

HONG KONG

Room 606-607, 6th Floor

China Merchants Building
152-155 Connaught Road Central
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong
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BxRAL (2/E)
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H55
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221%
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
naolé&m (7@

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Zhili Branch

No. 583, 587, 589 Zhenbei Road

Zhili Town

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province

PRC

Bank of China Limited

Huzhou Branch

No. 208, Renmin Road
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huzhou Branch

No. 88, Renmin Road

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
PRC

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG
LAW

Li & Partners
22nd Floor, World-wide House
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
naol&i (&)

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

Stock code: 2226
Board lot: 500 shares

WEBSITE

http://www.hzlaohenghe.com
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENSREEASERF

Below are brief profiles of the current directors (“Directors”,
“Director”) and senior management of the Group.

each a

B/ o

ATHEINAEERTES ([EE)) ek

I
s

Date of appointment

Name Age Position as Director
& FR B BZEERESHY
Executive Directors
HITES
Chen Weizhong 45 Chairman of the Board, executive Director and 13 May 2013
chief executive officer
R & EEREF POEFRERNTE —E-=FHA+=H
Sheng Mingjian 42 Executive Director and vice general manager 17 December 2013
RAR HITEE N BIALIE —E-=F+-A+tH
Wang Chao 39 Executive Director and managing director of sales and 17 December 2013
marketing
T HITEENHERTISEEE FELE —E-=F+ZA++R
Non-executive Director
FHTES
Sun Qingdong 31 Non-executive Director 23 June 2016
IR FEMITES —ZE-RFRAZT+=R
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFGITES
Shen Zhenchang 70 Independent non-executive Director 17 December 2013
RS W IFRITESE —E—=F+-A+tH
Lei Jiasu 61 Independent non-executive Director 17 December 2013
BEXE B IERITESE —E-=F+ZA++HR
Ma Chaosong 44 Independent non-executive Director 17 December 2013
SEEVN W IERITESE —E-=F+-A++tH

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
ESNSHMEEASREE (18

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weizhong (PR &), aged 45, is the chairman of the Board,
founder, chief executive officer (“CEQ”) of the Group and the executive
Director. He is primarily responsible for our Group’s overall strategic
planning, recipes use and control, distribution network expansion and
overall business operations. He has over 20 years of experience in
the condiment industry in the PRC and possesses unique information
regarding the research, development and intellectual property related to
our products, including the trade-secret recipes of fermentation starter
and cooking wine spices.

Mr. Chen started his career in the condiment industry as early as 1990
and has accumulated extensive experience in the condiment industry
since then, especially in production, research and development, and
sales and marketing. Before founding our Group in 2005, he was the
chairman and general manager of Zhejiang Zhong Wei Brewing Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhong Wei”) from 1995 to 2012. Mr. Chen completed a business
administration advance class at Zhejiang University (T AE2THEES
RIHE ) in 2008.

Mr. Chen has been a member of the China Condiment Industrial
Association (B FK R 1% €) since 2008. He is also the chairman of the
Huzhou Rice Wine Industrial Association (8N &)E#7 &) since 2012.

Mr. Sheng Mingjian (8283%£), aged 42, is our vice general manager
and executive Director. Mr. Sheng is primarily responsible for the
management of our Group’s financing activities and assisting Mr. Chen
to manage the overall business operations. He has more than 10 years
of experience in the condiment industry, and has extensive management
experience in capital and business operations. Before joining our Group
in 2006, he was the general manager of Zhong Wei from 2001 to 2006.

Mr. Wang Chao (E£i#8), aged 39, is our managing director of sales and
marketing and executive Director. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for
our Group’s sales and marketing. He has 15 years of experience in the
condiment industry. Mr. Wang joined Huzhou Lao Heng He Brewing
Factory (#JNZZIEMEEZER) (currently Huzhou Lao Heng He Brewery
Co., Ltd. (“Huzhou Lao Heng He”) in 1998 where he worked in various
departments, including business operation department and finance
department. Since 2006, Mr. Wang worked in management positions in
Huzhou Lao Heng He’s customer service centre and sales and marketing
department. Mr. Wang graduated from Zhejiang Electronic Polytechnic
School (#T4E T T T EE4), a technical middle school in 1998.

BITES

BREBRXE 455 REZSIF  AEEA
AN BEATE ([BERBTE]) RWITE
FoRFRARASENEEREMRE  KHE
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¥ o

REEFPE-NNTFELEABKRRITE - XA
IR AFRMITE (BRI—RELE  HREME
NRHERTISHERLDE) BRTEE0KR -
ER-_ZETRFRILAEEZA - BR—HAR
FE-Z - FHRBEDNITREBERR AR
(TR M EFERALIE - REENR -ZFEN
FRAMNIARBIEHERSRIHEINESE -

REEE -_TTNFESDEBKBHBEHK
B-RNME T _FEETDHAMNEEHSE
B o

BREAREL - 4258 0 RRMIMEIBLEE RTT
EX -BRALTIZREEEASENREGDNR
BHMRAELERBEBEHRL - REAKRDITE
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PREVAALIR -
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HERTHERSH - REFAKRMITEEFS
FOEER - TEER—NAANFMARMNZEM
BEm (RERMNZEANEEARAR ([HME
B SRZBOZEMFALIE  BREED
EEMPINIBEF - B -TTRNFRE - TEE
RBMZEMA TP IR P OIARHE R TG H
FERMEEEIRRTE - EERER-NANNFEER
PP EEEBRNTEAEF ISR -
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EENBREEASRE (18

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Sun Qingdong, aged 31, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Sun
possesses enriched knowledge and experience in the capital market and
investment industry.

Mr. Sun is a vice president of Lunar Capital since May 2015. Lunar
Capital is a leading private equity fund focused on investing in China
related consumer businesses. Mr. Sun focuses on consumer and retail
industry related investment. Prior to joining Lunar Capital, from July 2010
to March 2015, Mr. Sun worked in the China team of UBS Securities
Co. Limited as associate director and executed multiple types of capital
market deals domestically and overseas. Mr. Sun received a bachelor of
mathematics and a master of economics and finance in June 2007 and
March 2010 respectively from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Shen Zhenchang (Jt#& &), aged 70, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Shen has more than 40 years of experience in the cooking
wine industry. From 1971 to 2006, Mr Shen worked with China Shaoxing
Rice Wine Group (F B3 H &l 5B AR QA (previously known as
Shaoxing City Rice Wine Corporation (4382 B4 /A 7)). Before his
retirement from China Shaoxing Rice Wine Group in 2006, Mr. Shen was
the director of its office of general affairs.

Mr. Shen is a member of China Brewing Industry Association (rice wine
branch) (FEIEEE T#iHe=E/H5E), where he has been the deputy
council director and secretary general since 2000.

Additionally, Mr. Shen currently serves as a member of National Wine
Brewing Standard Technology Committee (£ BEIEEBEZELHIMEZE S), a
judge at the reviewing committee of China Alcoholic Drinks Association
Science Technology Award (BB ¥ & B251748), and the deputy
director of the editorial board of China Rice Wine magazine ({FFE&

B).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
ESNSHMEEASREE (18

Mr. Ma Chaosong (5 &i#2), aged 44, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Ma is a senior accountant (issued by the Beijing Senior
Specialized Technique Qualification Evaluation Committee on 6 January
2006), certified public accountant (issued by the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants on 28 September 1999), certified tax agent
(issued by China Certified Tax Agents Association on 11 May 2012)
and certified public valuer (issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC
on 24 April 2012) in China. Since 2000 Mr. Ma has been the chairman
of Beijing Xin Li Heng Tax Agency Co., Ltd. (bt IEREFH A ET=FS AT
AR EFE(EAR]). He has more than 11 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and taxation. In May 2011, Mr. Ma was appointed as an
independent director of China National Complete Plant Import & Export
Corp. Ltd. (AL ARRMHABRAR) (SZSE: 000151). From 1997 to
1999, Mr. Ma was a project manager at Zhong Ce Accounting Firm (-
Bl ETRN =)

In 1997, Mr. Ma graduated from the Research Institute of Fiscal Science,
Ministry of Finance of the PRC (7 BJ&f ExZFBF BB EWT R FT), with a
master’s degree in accounting. He graduated from Renmin University of
China (FEBIARAE) in 1994 with a bachelor’s degree in accounting.

Mr. Lei Jiasu (FEXE), aged 61, is our independent non-executive
Director. Currently, Mr. Lei is the director of the Research Centre of
Chinese Enterprise Growth and Economic Security in Beijing Tsinghua
University (B2 K2R B RELZEZ 2 H L), Since 1996,
he has been a lecturer in the School of Economics and Management
of Beijing Tsinghua University (B XS4 EEEZ0T). Between 1994
and 1996, he worked as a post-doctoral researcher in Beijing Tsinghua
University. From 1983 to 1989, Mr. Lei taught as a lecturer in Xi'an
Electronic and Technology University (78% & TR A Z).

In 2001, Mr. Lei was awarded the title of professor by Beijing Tsinghua
University. He graduated as a doctoral research fellow from the School
of Economics and Management of Beijing Tsinghua University (/5 % A2
4B I ERT) in 1998,

BHREE 4 BEMOBIERTE
F-BEERTEIMNSAEHE (RZZEEX
F-—AANBELEATEREERNERTIEE
BEEE) BMEZHEM (R—AAAFEAAZ
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REFRAIMERF - BIEF - ST kBB H
HESBEFER RZE——FHA L
SEZARTRELORDERART ORRAT
000151) MBILEF - B— W AEFEZE—NAN
NF - BhRAERETPASHAIEHANER K
% o
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EENBREEASRE (18

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SREEE

Name Age Year joined Position

#®E Fie A FE 1457 B

Chen Weizhong 45 2005 Chairman of the Board, executive
Director and chief executive officer

BR &8 —ETNEF BEEER  PTEERERATE

Sheng Mingjian 42 2006 Executive Director and vice general
manager

AR —ETRF WITE S REIAKE

Wang Chao 39 2006 Executive Director and managing
director of sales and marketing

T —ETREF BITEERHERMISHEEE FALE

Wan Peiyao 45 2005 Director of production

BIER —ETREF HENEE

Zhao Yaqin 39 2005 Financial controller

= —ETRF BATS 4R

Mr. Chen Weizhong (BR#8), aged 45, is the chairman of the Board,
CEO and executive Director. His biographical details are set out above
under the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management —
Executive Directors” to this annual report.

Mr. Sheng Mingjian (BXB3f#), aged 42, is our vice general manager and
executive Director. His biographical details are set out above under the
section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management — Executive
Directors” to this annual report.

Mr. Wang Chao (Ei&#), aged 39, is our managing director of sales
and marketing and executive Director. His biographical details are set
out above under the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management — Executive Directors” to this annual report.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
ESNSHMEEASREE (18

Mr. Wan Peiyao (& 3Z #), aged 45, is our director of production
department. He is primarily responsible for the Group’s production
management. He has more than 11 years of experience in the
condiment and cooking wine industry. Mr. Wan joined our Group in
2005, and has worked in various departments including workshop
operation department, cooking wine production department and plant
operation department. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wan was the plant
manager and executive assistant to the general manager of Huzhou
Ganchang Wine Company (#1328 /BZ AR 72 7)) from 2000 to 2005.
Mr. Wan passed the test for first-class sommelier of PRC (BIZR — & )
BM) in December 2012,

Mr. Wan graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (47T T 2K
£) with a bachelor’s degree in industrial engineering (biochemistry) in
1995.

Ms. Zhao Yaqin (#HZ), aged 39, is our financial controller. Ms.
Zhao is responsible for the Group’s financing, account and tax matters.
She has more than 11 years of experience in the areas of financial
management, accounting practices and tax arrangements. She joined
our Group in 2005 as manager of our finance department and became
our financial controller in 2012. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zhao was
the manager of finance department of Zhong Wei from 2003 to 2005.

Ms. Zhao received a diploma in accounting from Central Radio and
Television University (R EHEE R AZ) in 2006.

BREEALE 455 REMANEESLEE - ®
IZREARENEEERE o RNBEKE REE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR

BUSINESS REVIEW £ C)

For details of our business review, please refer to the section on HREBRMEKLE T FLREALAEHFLE
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 9 to this annual report. QEW [ E/FHheE | —65 -

FINANCIAL REVIEW 51 7% (51 &

Overview e

The key financial indicators of the Group are as follows: AREFEMTEEBBIEENT :

Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=+—HALEE

Year-on-year

2016 2015 Change
—®-RxE —T-HF  BEED
RMB’000 RMB’000 %

ARBTRT ARETT

Income statement items WKzRER
Sales fHERR 831,149 798,861 4.0%
Gross profit ESA 445,696 450,872 (1.1%)
Profit attributable to owners of the parent BARIFE ABMLFE 206,636 228,528 (9.6%)
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and BRFIE « FiIE - §7E LS
amortization (‘EBITDA”) AIFE (TBRFIE ~ BLIE -

WEREBHEAFME]) 321,658 335,168 (4.0%)
Earning per share (RMB cents) (Note (a)) FERERN (ARKD)

(M5t (a)) 38.4 441 (12.9%)
Selected financial ratios BB A L =R
Gross profit margin (%) FEF K (%) 56.4% (5.0%)
Net profit margin attributable to ordinary BRelEmEREEA

equity holders of the parent (%) FEAEFFE 2 (%) 28.6% (12.9%)

EBITDA margin (%) RS BE HEK

B SRR 2 (%) 42.0% (7.9%)
Return on equity holders’ equity (%) =15 A AR LR (%) 16.1% (32.3%)
Gearing ratio (Note (b)) BERAELE (MiFEp) 30.9% 5.2%
Notes: ftsE -
(a) Please refer to Note 12 to the financial statements of this annual report  (a) EHERAENNFE R L FL2EAFRNG

for the calculation of earnings per share. M FE12 -

(b) The gearing ratio is based on net debt divided by total equity and net ~ ©) RZFB-ARET-A=1T—HB AXAR/LE

BWFEBR AR R LFEBE - FEBE
EREBRRE MRS EEY - REBEERE

. . , NEHHIE - RN FRREREE 58
and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and other long 1T RS E S A o

debt as at 31 December 2016. Net debt includes total debt net of cash
and cash equivalents. Total debt includes trade payables, other payables

term liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SR EsmR N (1)

Revenue A

The revenue of the Group, increased by 4.0% from RMB798.9 million in  KEBEHW AR T —HFENARKE798.9HE
2015 to RMB831.1 million in 2016, primarily reflecting an increase in the T IN4.0%E — T — NEMAREEI1.1H S
sales of our cooking wine products and other products, and a decrease 7T FEmRPRHFIELEE R EMIEE RN E

in sales of our soy sauce products and vinegar products. BRI NN E AN B AV E T PRATER o
Sales Analysis by Product Categories REREANFTHNEED M

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—-BLEE

2016 2015
—E-REF ZET—AhF
Percentage Percentage
of total of total
Revenue revenue Revenue revenue Change
HEKA IEERIA
WA Aokt WA Aok 21t
RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %
AR¥T T AREFT AR¥EFTT
Cooking wine S
Premium A 95,055 130,439 16% (35,384) (27.1%)
High-end = i 87,536 110,260 14% (22,724) (20.6%)
Medium-range AR i 413,729 329,921 41% 83,808 25.4%
Mass-market EE 24,700 10,632 1% 14,068 132.3%
Subtotal /NEF 621,020 581,252 72% 39,768 6.8%
Soy sauce #5h 98,720 107,982 14% (9,262) (8.6%)
Vinegar [ 74,266 87,043 11% (12,777) (14.6%)
Other products HoAth 2 i 37,143 22,584 3% 14,559 64.2%
Total A&t 831,149 798,861 100% 32,288 4.0%

ZENMEERAT —B-REER 21
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
S EsImR M (48

Revenue from cooking wine products increased by 6.8% from RMB581.3
million for the year of 2015 to RMB621.0 million for the year of 2016,
mainly due to the increase in revenue from our medium-range cooking
wine products. With our efforts in enhancing the brand image of “Lao
Heng He” cooking wine with “naturally-brewed” concept, promoting the
brand awareness of “Lao Heng He” by advertisements and the efforts
of diversified distribution channel of our group to deeply penetrate to
third and fourth-tier cities, the sales of our cooking wine products kept
increasing in 2016, especially our medium-range products, such as Lao
Heng He Cooking Wine (Z1EF1£LE) and Scallion & Ginger Cooking
Wine (BERH).

Revenue from the Group’s soy sauce products and vinegar products
decreased by 8.6% and 14.6%, respectively, from RMB108.0 million
and RMB87.0 million for the year of 2015 to RMB98.7 million and
RMB74.3 million for the year of 2016, respectively. The decrease is
mainly attributable to the decrease in our sales and marketing resources
devoted in the supermarket channel in 2016.

Revenue from other products increased by 64.2% from RMB22.6 million
for the year of 2015 to RMB37.1 million for the year of 2016, which was
mainly due to the significant increase in sales of soybean paste product
of the Group.

We believe the outstanding performance of our sales are largely
attributed to (i) enhanced advertisements to promote market recognition
of “Lao Heng He” brand; (ii) diversified channels to explore our
sales network to deeply penetrate into third and fourth-tier cities; (iii)
consistent superior quality of “Lao Heng He” products; (iv) growing
consumer consciousness of food safety and preference for naturally
brewed cooking wine products which we introduced to the market; and
(v) rising disposable income level of household in the PRC.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales increased by 10.8% from RMB348.0 million in 2015 to
RMB385.5 million in 2016. The increase in cost of sales was mainly due
to the combined effect of the increase in revenue and decrease in the
gross profit margin as a result of the decrease in the proportion of sales
of high-end products with higher gross profit caused by the increase in
the proportion of sales of medium-range products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit decreased by 1.1% from
RMB450.9 million in 2015 to RMB445.7 million in 2016. The gross profit
margin decreased from 56.4% in 2015 to 53.6% in 2016, primarily due
to the decrease in the proportion of sales of high-end products with
higher gross profit caused by the increase in the proportion of sales of
medium-range products.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by 29.4% from RMB11.9 million
in 2015 to RMB8.4 million in 2016. Other income and gains primarily
include subsidy received, gains from sales of materials and interest
income. The decrease in other income and gains was primarily due to
the decrease in gain upon expiry of warrants, and offset by the increase
in government subsidy received.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of advertising
expenses, marketing expenses, promotion expenses, travelling
expenses, and remuneration of our sales employees.

Our selling and distribution expenses increased from RMB75.1 million
in 2015 to RMB81.2 million in 2016, and the distribution expenses as
a percentage of the Group’s revenue increased from 9.4% for 2015 to
9.8% for 2016, which is attributable to (i) increase in advertisements
and promotion activities to expand the market shares of the products
of our Group and our brand; (i) the increase in the size of the sales
and marketing team of our Group in order to strengthen our sales and
marketing team to promote business development.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses increased by 3.5% from RMB80.3 million
in 2015 to RMB83.1 million in 2016. This increase is attributable to the
increase in research and development expenses as our Group made
endeavour in research and development to improve the technological
contents of the manufacturing craftsmanship and quality of the products
of our Group.

SR EsTmE DI (18
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
S EsImR M (48

Finance Cost

Finance cost increased by 24.5% from RMB32.6 million in 2015 to
RMB40.6 million in 2016. The increase in finance cost primarily reflected
an increase in interest expenses from RMB32.6 million for the year of
2015 to RMB40.6 million for the year of 2016 as a result of an increase
in the average balance of our bank and other borrowings in 2016 to
support the expansion of our business and exploration of diversified
sales channels.

Profit before Tax

Due to the aforesaid reasons, the profit before tax decreased by 9.7%
from RMB274.7 million in 2015 to RMB248.0 million in 2016.

Income Tax Expense

The corporate income tax of the Group in respect of its operations in
Mainland China has been provided at the rate of 25% (2015: 25%) on
the taxable profits, based on the existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the approval from the National Office of Leading Group for
Administration of Hi-tech Enterprise Recognition, Huzhou Laohenghe
Brewery Co., Limited (#/N Z1BHMEEEER 2 F]) and Huzhou Laohenghe
Wine Co., Limited (#NZIEFEZ AR 2 7)), both being wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, were granted the “New and Advanced
Technology Enterprise” status and were entitled to the preferential tax
rate of 15% for the three consecutive years commencing from 2016,
which remained the same as compared to that of 2015 (2015: 15%).

Income tax expense decreased slightly by 10.6% from RMB46.2 million

in 2015 to RMB41.3 million in 2016, mainly due to the decrease in profit
before tax.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SR EsmR N (1)

Profit Attributable to Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Parent

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent decreased
by 9.6% from RMB228.5 million in 2015 to RMB206.6 million in 2016,
which is mainly attributable to the increase in advertising expenses as a
result of the aforesaid reasons.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity
Holders of the Parent

Basic earnings per share decreased from RMB44.1 cents for 2015
to RMB38.4 cents for 2016. Decrease in earnings per share was
attributable to the decrease in profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent and the increase in weighted-average number of
issued shares.

Net Profit Margin

Net profit margin decreased by 3.7 percentage points from 28.6% in
2015 to 24.9% in 2016. The decrease in net profit margin was mainly
attributable to a decrease in gross profit margin and an increase in
selling and distribution expenses and finance costs as a result of the
aforesaid reasons.

FINANCIAL AND LIQUIDITY POSITION
Prepayments for Non-current Assets

Prepayments for non-current assets of the Group primarily include the
following two aspects: (1) prepayments to equipment manufacturers
in respect of customizing wine storage equipment and production
equipment for the Group; and (2) prepayments to major contractors
of the projects before entering into formal construction contracts.
Prepayments for non-current assets were primarily used for locking
up the costs of major materials related to capital expenditure so as to
reduce the risk to the Group due to the increasing capital expenditure
scale.

Prepayments for non-current assets increased from RMB113.5 million
as at 31 December 2015 to RMB335.4 million as at 31 December
2016. The increase in prepayments for non-current assets was mainly
attributable to our plan to diversify our product structure and expand
production capability of condiments in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
S EsImR M (48

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables increased from RMB142.0 million as at 31 December
2015 to RMB162.5 million as at 31 December 2016 and the turnover
days of trade receivables decreased from 75 days in 2015 to 67 days
in 2016, mainly reflecting an increase in the proportion of sales to
category C and D distributors which has shorter credit period. Details
of the ageing analysis of trade receivables are set out in Note 16 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

We implemented a multi-category distributor system to manage
distribution of its products since 2011. We classified its distributors into
Category A (the highest), B, C and D based on their distribution scale
and capabilities.

Inventories

Inventories increased from RMB945.5 million as at 31 December 2015
to RMB1,088.4 million as at 31 December 2016, primarily due to an
increase in work in progress. A substantial part of our inventories were
contributed by work in progress, which mainly represented base wine,
base soy sauce, semi-finished soybean paste and base vinegar in the
brewing period. Due to the long production cycle and short sales cycle,
we need to keep an abundant stock of well-aged base wine to cope with
the rapid sales growth in the future. The Company has attained the goal
for base wine stock disclosed in the Interim Report of 2015; basically,
the base wine stock is able to satisfy the demand of the Company’s
business in the future. In 2016, we increased the inventories of base soy
sauce, semi-finished soybean paste and base vinegar to cope with the
future growth in sales bringing by the maturity of diversified distribution
channel.

We monitor the level of inventory maintained by our distributors on a
regular basis. Our sales representatives maintain frequent telephone
or email communications with each of our Category A, B, C and
D distributors, review their monthly inventory reports and visit their
warehouses on a regular basis. Our sales representatives visit the
warehouses of our Category A and B distributors at least on a monthly
basis and those of Category C and D distributors at least every three
months to ensure that they keep optimal stock level and our products
are sold to end customers within the shelf life. We generally expect our
distributors to maintain sufficient stock for 5 to 20 days of supply. In the
event a distributor maintains stocks of more than 20 days of supply, the
relevant sales representatives will assist such distributor in marketing
and promotional activities and suggest orders with a smaller amount to
be placed for the succeeding periods to minimize excess inventory.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SR EsmR N (1)

As at 31 December 2016, our inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB525.3 million (31 December 2015: RMB366.1 million) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to us.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2016, our total borrowings amounted to RMB849.0
million (31 December 2015: RMB644.8 million) including finance lease
payables with a carrying amount of RMB34.4 million (31 December
2015: 55.0 million).

Foreign Currency Risks

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and conducts its operations
mainly in Renminbi. The Group will closely monitor the fluctuations
of the Renminbi exchange rate and give prudent consideration as to
entering into any currency swap arrangement as and when appropriate
for hedging corresponding risks. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group has not engaged in hedging activities for managing foreign
exchange rate risk.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB291.8 million (31 December 2015: RMB186.0 million). As at
31 December 2016, we had interest-bearing bank borrowings of an
aggregate amount of RMB849.0 million (31 December 2015: RMB644.8
million), which were denominated in RMB with interest rates from 3.92%
to 5.70% per annum.

We estimate that a more prudent monetary policy would be implemented
in China in 2017, which might result in tightened money supply from
banks and an increase in bank interest rate. With the aim to ensure
sufficient funds for our future business development and better control
of our finance costs, we increased the cash balances to reduce our
future needs for credit funds.

Our principal sources of liquidity include cash generated from business
operation, bank borrowings, other borrowings and the proceeds from
the Subscription (as defined below). We used cash from such sources
for working capital, production facility expansions, other capital
expenditures and debt repayment. We expect these uses will continue
to be our principal uses of cash in the future, and that our cash flow will
be sufficient to fund our ongoing business requirements. Meanwhile, we
have decided to further broaden our financing channel to improve our
capital structure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
S EsImR M (48

On 23 June 2016, the Company completed a placing of 60,000,000
ordinary shares at a placing price of HK$6 per share to Natural
Seasoning (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Subscriber”) in accordance with
the subscription agreement dated 2 June 2016 (the “Subscription”).
The Subscriber is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and its principal activity is owning and operating companies
or businesses focused in the condiments market in the PRC. The
Subscriber and its ultimate beneficial owner are independent third
parties. For further details of the Subscription, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 2 June 2016 and 23 June 2016,
respectively. The net proceeds after deduction of relevant expenses
(including but not limited to legal expenses and disbursements) from the
Subscription were approximately HK$356,100,000, representing a net
price of approximately HK$5.935 per share. The Company planned to
use net proceeds from the Subscription for general working capital of
the Group.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group was 32.5% as at 31 December 2016,
representing an increase of 1.6 percentage points over 2015.

The gearing ratio is based on net debt divided by total equity and net
debt as at 31 December 2016. Net debt includes total debt net of cash
and cash equivalents. Total debt includes trade payables, other payables
and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and other long
term liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital commitment as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately RMB56.1 million (31 December 2015: RMB30.2 million),
which was mainly related to construction in progress for expansion of
plant and machinery.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SR EsmR N (1)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, we did not have any material contingent
liability.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, our inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB525.3 million, property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount
of RMB97.2 million, leasehold land with a carrying amount of RMB40.4
million, trade receivables with a carrying amount of RMB23.1 million and
time deposits with a carrying amount of RMB159.0 million were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to us.

Except as disclosed in this annual report, we have not entered into any
off-balance sheet guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the
payment obligations of any third party. It does not have any interest in
any unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk
or credit support to it or engage in leasing or hedging or research and
development or other service with it.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

The Company has no material acquisition and disposal as at 31
December 2016.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

For details of the Group’s business outlook, please refer to the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 9 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
S EsImR M (48

MARKET RISKS
Credit Risk

The Group’s major concentration of credit risk arises from the Group’s
exposure to a substantial number of trade receivables, prepayments
and other receivables, time deposits, and cash and cash equivalents.
The Group’s trade receivables are typically unsecured and derived from
revenue earned from customers in the PRC, which are exposed to credit
risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that the sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit limit, and has strict
control over credit limits of trade and other receivables.

In addition, the balance of trade receivables is monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other receivables are disclosed in Notes 16 and 17 to
the financial statements in this annual report.

Liquidity Risk

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
policy to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and have
available funding through capital contribution and bank borrowings. The
Company’s management also monitors the utilization of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants. For details on the maturity
profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2016, please
refer to Note 33 to the financial statements in this annual report.

Risk of Increasing Capital Expenditure Scale

The primary capital expenditure of the Group was used for building
plants, acquiring production and wine storage equipment for the purpose
of expanding production capability. In recent years, the Group continued
to optimize the production process and expand production capability of
condiment products. If the operating condition declines in the future, the
annual profit may decrease due to increase in fixed operating costs as a
result of the aforesaid reasons.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SR EsmR N (1)

EMPLOYEES AND WELFARE
CONTRIBUTION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 561 full-time
employees (31 December 2015: 303). The employees’ remuneration
packages are determined with reference to their experience and
qualifications and general market conditions. The remuneration policies,
bonus, evaluation systems and training programs for employees of our
Group were implemented continuously according to policies disclosed in
the 2015 annual report and no change has been made in 2016.

The total remuneration paid to the Group’s employees (excluding
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration) for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to approximately RMB31.8 million (2015:
approximately RMB21.4 million), which included the Group’s contribution
to the employee benefit plan for the year 2016 of RMB4.3 million (2015:
RMB2.7 million). Details of the employee benefit expense are disclosed
in Note 6 to the financial statements in this annual report.

The following table sets forth the Group’s full-time employees by function
as at 31 December 2016:
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Production HE 227 40.5%
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Sales and marketing SHE M 240 42.8%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
S EsImR M (48

The Group has designed an evaluation system to assess the
performance of its employees. This system forms the basis for
determination of employees’ salaries, bonuses and promotions. We
believe the salaries and bonuses that our Group’s employees receive
are competitive with market rates. Under applicable PRC laws and
regulations, our Group is subject to social insurance contribution plans,
work-related injury insurance and maternity insurance schemes.

We place a strong emphasis on providing training to our employees
in order to enhance their technical and product knowledge as well as
comprehension of industry quality standards and work place safety
standards. We also provide regular on-site and off-site training to help
our employees to improve their skills and knowledge. These training
courses range from further educational studies to basic production
process and skill training to professional development courses for its
management personnel.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year of 2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year of 2016, the Group made charitable donations of
RMB62,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIBWRS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices for enhancing accountability and transparency
of the Company to its investors and Shareholders. The Board and the
management of the Company are committed to conducting the Group’s
businesses in a transparent and responsible manner, and they believe
good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management, a healthy corporate culture, sustainable business
growth and enhancing Shareholders’ value in the long term.

(A)

(B)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “Governance Code”) as contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (as amended from time to time)
(the “Listing Rules”) as its own code to govern its corporate
governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Governance
Code except the deviations as set out below in this report.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices
of the Company with an aim to achieve and maintain a high
standard of corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by
the Directors and the Group’s senior management who, because
of his/her office or employment, is likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2016. In addition, the Company is not aware of any
non-compliance of the Model Code by the senior management of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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(C) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, including establishing and overseeing the Company’s
strategic development, business plans, financial objectives,
capital investment proposals and assumes the responsibilities of
corporate governance of the Company.

The Board gave their input and considered the priorities and
initiatives, aiming at developing a sustainable plan for the
Company to generate and preserve its long-term corporate
values and to achieve its business strategies and objectives.

The Board may from time to time delegate all or any of its
powers that it may think fit to a Director or member of senior
management of the Company. The Board has formulated clear
and specific rules and policies on such delegation of power to
facilitate efficient operation of the Company and is supported
by three board committees together the “Board Committees”,
which are audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”),
remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”).

Directors must dedicate sufficient time and attention to the
Group’s affairs. Besides, the Company also requested all
Directors to disclose to the Company annually the number and
the nature of offices held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitments with an indication of the time
involved.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance for all

Directors in respect of legal actions against the Directors arising
out of corporate activities.
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Functions and Duties of the Board

The Board supervises the management of business and affairs of
the Company. The primary duties of the Board include:

(@) overall management of the business and strategic
development;

(b) deciding business plans and investment plans;

(c) monitoring the ongoing operation of the Company and
to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
Shareholders as a whole while taking into account the
interests of other stakeholders;

(d) convening general meetings and reporting to the
Shareholders; and

(e) exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by Shareholders in general meetings.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility of daily
operations, business strategies and day to day management of
the Company to the CEO and the senior management.

The senior management, under the leadership of the CEO, is
delegated by the Board the authority and responsibility for the
daily operations and management of the Group. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions to be entered by the Company.

Board Members

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at the date
of this annual report, the Board consist of the following seven
Directors, including three executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman and CEQO)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian

Mr. Wang Chao
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Non-executive Director
Mr. Zhang Bihong (Resigned on 23 June 2016)

Mr. Sun Qingdong (Appointed on 23 June 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Shen Zhenchang

Mr. Lei Jiasu

Mr. Ma Chaosong

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among the Directors of the Company.

An updated list of the roles and functions of Directors is
maintained on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, and the Company shall keep updating whenever
necessary. The details of the Directors’ biographical information
are contained in the section headed “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy on 25
March 2014 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy
aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee will
evaluate the balance and blend of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives of the Board. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity experiences, including but not
limited to age, gender, cultural and educational background, and
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company at all times complied with the requirement of Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, which requires an issuer’s board
of directors to have at least one-third of its members being
independent non-executive directors. In addition, the Company
has duly complied with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, which requires the issuer’s board must include at
least three independent non-executive directors and at least one
of the independent non-executive directors to have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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Mr. Ma Chaosong, chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee
and being one of the independent non-executive Director,
possesses over 10 years of experience in the financial field.
Together with another two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Lei Jiasu and Mr. Shen Zhenchang, all of whom have wide
exposure and experience in the cooking wine industry and
management field, provide the Group with diversified expertise
and experience.

Their views and participation in Board and Board committee
meetings bring independent judgment and advice on issues
relating to the Group’s strategies, performance, conflicts of
interest, management process and to ensure that the interests of
all Shareholders are taken into account.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors on their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Board considers that each of them be independent. The Board
believes that the present structure of the Board can ensure
the independence and objectivity of the Board and provide an
effective system of checks and balance to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and the Company.

The Board considers that the balance between executive and
non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
Shareholders and the Group as a whole. The composition of the
Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business development of
the Group and for effective leadership. The Board has separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary at all times.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
are clearly identified as such in all corporate communications
containing the names of the Directors.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or a
letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term. The
initial term of office for each Director is a term of three years from
their respective appointment date and is subject to retirement
by rotation at an annual general meeting (the “AGM”) at least
once every three years. According to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election at the relevant AGM. In addition,
the Articles provide that any Director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment, whereas any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM. The
Director appointed by the Board as aforesaid shall be eligible for
re-election at the relevant general meeting.

Shareholders may, at any general meeting of the members
convened and held in accordance with the Articles, remove a
Director at any time before the expiration of his/her period of
office notwithstanding to the contrary in the Articles or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles, Mr. Sun Qingdong,
Mr. Lei Jiasu and Mr. Shen Zhenchang will retire from office as
Director by rotation at the forthcoming 2017 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional
Development

The Company has regularly provided the Directors with
information of relevant training courses. Updates on the
amendments of applicable rules and regulations have been given
to the Directors from time to time. The Directors have provided
the Company with a record of their training received in 2016. A
summary of the Directors participation in continuous professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

EECREEERE

ARAFERRESRHEABEFIREZN
Bt BRAZBRANMERNETENE
HTegTHRHEES - ESMALT
RERENR B -REMEXBINT
o EERBEE_T—RET_A="T
—HIFFE2HENFEZEEIM
™

Attending briefings/

seminars/ Reading materials/
conferences Regulatory updates
Name of Director EEHR HEENE mEEy
2500 EEEHERN
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chen Weizhong PRETREE v v
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BRRRfE A& 4 v
Mr. Wang Chao FHEEE v v
Non-executive Directors FEHNITEE
Mr. Sun Qingdong FIR & 4 v
Independent non-executive Directors B/ I 7TEE
Mr. Shen Zhenchang RS & v/ v
Mr. Lei Jiasu ERELE v v
Mr. Ma Chaosong H[EMELE v/ v

Internally, the Company’s senior management, including the
executive Directors, will implement a training plan and conduct
training sessions for its key staff members on a continuing basis.
The Directors are required to submit to the Company details
of training sessions taken by them in each financial year for
the Company’s maintenance of proper training records of the
Directors.
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Board and Board Committee Meetings

Under code provision A.1.1 of the Governance Code, the Board
should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and under
code provision A.2.7 of the Governance Code, the chairman
of the board should at least annually hold meeting with the
non-executive Directors (including independent non- executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present.

A tentative schedule for regular Board meetings for 2017 has
been provided to the Directors. At least 14 days’ notice for
all regular Board meetings will be given to all Directors and all
Directors must be given the opportunity to include items or
businesses for discussion in the agenda. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given. Relevant agenda and
accompanying Board papers will be sent to all Directors at least
three days in advance of every regular Board meeting.

All matters and decisions reached, including any concerns raised
by Directors or dissenting views expressed, will be recorded in
minutes of Board meeting or other Board committees meetings
in sufficient detail. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board/
Board committee meetings will be sent to all Directors/committee
members for comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the respective meetings are held. The final
versions of these minutes are kept by the Company secretary of
the Company and are available for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director and auditor of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board convened
a total of 4 Board meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting,
1 Nomination Committee meeting, 2 Audit Committee meetings,
based on the need of the operation and business development
of the Company. Besides, the Directors also attended the
2016 AGM, which is the only general meeting held in 2016, to
understand the views of the shareholders.
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All Board members attended the said meetings in person or by
means via telephonic conferencing, which constituting presence
at a meeting as if he has been present in person under the
Articles. The Board intends to meet at least four times per year in
the future, and the chairman of the Board intends to hold at least
one meeting per year with the non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) without the executive
Directors present.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board considers
that all meetings have been legally and properly convened in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations (including
the Listing Rules and the Articles). With the assistance of the
company secretary, the chairman of the Board takes the lead
to ensure that Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are convened in accordance with the requirements set out in
the Articles, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules. The Director’s attendance at
the Board meetings is set out in the section headed “Attendance
at Board and Board Committee Meetings” below.

Upon making reasonable request to the Company, Board
members have the right to seek independent professional advice
or services at the Company’s expense to assist them to perform
their duties to the Company.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving substantial
Shareholder(s) or Director(s) arise and the Board considers the
matter to be material, the Company will hold a physical Board
meeting to discuss and consider the matter, instead of passing a
written resolution. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose associates, have no material interest in the transaction
should be required to be present at that Board meeting.
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Attendance at Board and Board Committee

Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings, Board
committee meetings and 2016 AGM held during 2016 is set out

HEEESERESZEEEEE

BEFHRRN - - RERTHEIE

EReRR_F—A

EZREg3 EEZX

as follows. FRFBEFRSHERAINNAT o
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee = Committee Committee
meeting meeting meeting meeting 2016 AGM
—E-RE
- B RE M RREE
Name of Director ESHZ &% LEB8E ZEgEE ZEEER PN
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chen Weizhong REBRLE
(Chairman of the Board) (EZ8XE) 4/4 @A @ TiEH i
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BERAREE 4/4 TiEA ek A /1
Mr. Wang Chao THEE 4/4 TiEA ek A /1
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Zhang Bihong RIMaLEAE
(Resigned on 23 June 2016) (RZE—RE
NAZT=BEL) 3/3 TEA TiER TEmA 1/1
Mr. Sun Qingdong BHELE
(Appointed on 23 June 2016) (RZE—REF
NAZT=REERE) il 11 @R TER TER
Independent non-executive Directors — BB iTEE
Mr. Shen Zhenchang WRE L. 4/4 212 171 7 i
Mr. Lei Jiasu ERELL 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
Mr. Ma Chaosong BEREAE 4/4 2/2 1/1 11 11
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Corporate Governance Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for fulfilling the following corporate
governance responsibilities:

o develop and review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices and put forward recommendations
to the Board;

. review and monitor the training and continuing
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

regarding compliance with laws and regulatory provisions;

o develop, review and monitor code of conduct and
compliance manual for staff and Directors (if any);

o review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

. develop shareholder communications policy and regularly
review the policy to ensure its effectiveness.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the Governance Code provides that the
roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer (the “CEQ”)
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and the CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Chen Weizhong (“Mr. Chen”) has continually served as both
the chairman and CEO of the Company since its incorporation.
He is responsible for managing the Board and the business of the
Group. Although this deviates from the practice in code provision
A.2.1 of the Governance Code, Mr. Chen has considerable
and extensive experience in the cooking wine industry and
management in general. The Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Company to have an executive chairman so the
Board can benefit from his knowledge of the business and his
capability in leading the Board in discussing the strategy and
long-term development of the Group.
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From a corporate governance point of view, the decisions of the
Board are made collectively by way of voting and therefore the
chairman should not be able to monopolize the voting result. The
Board considers that the balance of power between the Board
and the senior management can still be maintained under the
current structure and there is no imminent need to change the
arrangement. The Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committees also regularly review the structure and composition
of the Board and will make appropriate recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of
the Company with an aim to maintaining and implementing a high
standard of corporate governance practices.

Mr. Chen, as the chairman of the Board, is responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive in a timely manner, adequate
information which is accurate, clear, complete and reliable. He
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at the Board meetings. Mr. Chen is also responsible for ensuring
good corporate governance practices and procedures are
maintained, all Directors make full and active contribution to the
Board’s affairs, and the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders.

Under the leadership of Mr. Chen, the Board works effectively
and performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate
issues discussed in a timely manner. Appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication between the Shareholders
and the Board. Mr. Chen will ensure appropriate steps are taken
and the Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board as
a whole.

A culture of openness and constructive relations among Directors
are promoted within the Board, facilitating effective contribution
of non-executive Directors and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive Directors.

In the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Chen, the chairman of
the Board has met with the independent non-executive Directors
(without the presence of the executive Directors) once to discuss,
and obtain independent views of, the Board affairs.
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(E) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

(F)

The term of Mr. Sun Qingdong, the Company’s incumbent non-
executive director, shall last for two years from 23 June 2016.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Delegation by the Board

The Board is supported by the Board Committees, and the Board
has delegated various responsibilities to the Board Committees,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. All Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to public on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has provided the Board Committees with sufficient
resources and the Board Committees may seek independent
professional advice as and when required at the Company’s
expense.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 17 December
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange and the Governance Code. The Audit Committee
currently has four members, namely Mr. Ma Chaosong, Mr. Lei
Jiasu, Mr. Shen Zhenchang and Mr. Sun Qingdong. Mr. Ma
Chaosong, the Company’s independent non-executive Director,
has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee,
and possess the appropriate professional qualifications required
under the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has access to
professional advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process, financial control,
internal control and risk management systems of the Company,
nominate and monitor external auditor, oversee the audit process
and perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the
Board on an annual basis.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
has convened two meetings, with all members present in person
or through telephonic conferencing, during which the following
works were performed:

o Assessed the independence of the Company’s auditors;

o Discussed with external auditors about the scope of work
and fees in respect of their audit work for the year ended
31 December 2016;

° Met with the Company’s external auditor to discuss the
audit procedures and accounting issues;

° Reviewed and discussed the audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and the unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2016
with the senior management of the Company and external
auditor;

° Reviewed the financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems of the Group;

o Reviewed the accounting policies adopted by the Group
and other issues related to the Company’s accounting
practice; and

° Appointment of external auditors (subject to AGM
approval) and arrangements for the employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the above

meeting is set out in the above section headed “Attendance at
Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016

HEZZ—R"F+ZA=+—HLF
E ERZECLAAMAEE 28
MEHEFIUESEEH AL FEE:
TEULEARE « 1T Y I -

. FHEAR R R BB BT
. HINEZ BB R E AR E
B ik

—E-XF+=ZA=+—
EERIENIESERER

F

. EARNBMIINEZEMEHE - &
NERREFRGIEE

. HARNBSMEERERINEZH
MERRImBE T —RF+
TR+ -HLEFENKRZF
BEEENRBE _T—RFRA=
THIEAREAMREEZT R

=
%

. WA AR B A MBI - AR
HEEREEER

. B AEETRMANEFHERE R
EBRARBEHEFRANEMSE
TN

. RSB BN (RER R B
RegfE) RerRERSY T
E1TRMBDE

ERZEeNBEEETRAR R R
R ER] -

EZZEBEKEBRR LA ER 2 BAHN
REXTHFESERESFLZEEEHE]

—Hfi e



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
IPREIBHRE (@

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 17 December 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Listing Rules and the Governance Code.
The Remuneration Committee has three members, namely Mr.
Shen Zhenchang, Mr. Lei Jiasu and Mr. Ma Chaosong. Mr. Shen
Zhenchang, the Company’s independent non-executive Director,
has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee has access to
professional advise, if required, and is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review,
determine and make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure of the remuneration (including bonuses and other
compensation) payable to the Directors and senior management
and make recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee is also responsible to establish
a formal and transparent procedure for development of
remuneration policy, and ensuring no Director or his/her
associate is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman of the
Board about the remuneration proposals for the other executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company held one meeting
in 2016 to review and make recommendations on the existing
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members at the
above meeting is set out in the section headed “Attendance at
Board and Board Committee Meetings” above.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
available on websites of the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Governance Code, the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
PXREIBWS (18)

$E33““a/n—r,ﬁ\lJZ—r,ﬁJH X ¥B.1.515 - &

—E-RF+ZA=Z=+—HLFER
i& BEXEBRFHNGE D 2 FEFHH
s

Number of Individual

FMEE (AR A
Nil-1,000,000 Z — 1,000,000 5

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in Note 8 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 17
December 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Listing Rules and the Governance Code. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lei Jiasu,
Mr. Shen Zhenchang and Mr. Ma Chaosong. Mr. Lei Jiasu,
the Company’s independent non-executive Director, has been
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee has access to professional advice, if
required, and is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
compositions to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for identifying
suitably qualified individuals and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning of Directors. Furthermore, it also assesses
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting in 2016,
during which the diversity, structure, size and composition of
the Board, the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and the qualifications of the retiring directors standing
for re-election at the 2016 AGM were reviewed and considered,
and relevant recommendation was made to the Board. The
attendance of the Nomination Committee members at the above
meeting is set out in the section headed “Attendance at Board
and Board Committee Meetings” above.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
takes into account the various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee discussed and agreed on measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommends them to the Board for adoption. The Nomination
Committee considers an appropriate balance of diversity
perspective of the Board is maintained. The Board Diversity
Policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee annually,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee makes reference to certain criteria
such as the Company’s needs, the integrity, experience, skills
and expertise of the candidate, board diversity aspects and
the amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s external
auditor, Ernst & Young, during the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out below:
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(H)

The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board
that the level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditors for annual audit and non-audit services is reasonable.
There has been no major disagreement between the auditors
and the management of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Audit Committee is responsible to make recommendation
to the Board as to the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditors. There is no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as the Company’s external auditors for the
financial year ending 31 December 2017 which is subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to be held on 31 May 2017 (“2017 AGM”).

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING IN
RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
accounts of the Group and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and the Company’s management will
provide information and explanation to the Board to enable it to
make informed assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the
“Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining effective risk
management and internal control systems and conducting
regular review on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Company. The risk management
and Internal Control systems of the Group are characterised by
distinct division between power and authority, clear procedures,
high transparency and efficiency. The Company has worked out
a procedure for identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks of the Company. Business departments including the
production and sales departments are responsible for identifying,
supervising and evaluating the risks related to themselves, and
report to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis.
The senior management shall evaluate and set priorities for the
identified risks according to the procedure set by the Board’s
Audit Committee, and then submit risk alleviation plans to the
Audit Committee which shall appoint officers responsible for risk
management.

The Company has formulated the insider information policies
according to the Securities & Futures Ordinance and the Listing
Rules. The Company’s Directors, senior management and all
others relevant employees are provided with the guidelines
to ensure that the Company promptly disclose the insider
information under reasonable and practicable circumstances.
The guideline contains a series of procedure to ensure that the
information are kept confidential before they are disclosed to
the general public, and shall publicly disclose such information
immediately if the Company considers that it is impossible to
keep it confidential as required.

The risk management and internal control systems adopted by
the Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risks of failing to achieve the business objectives and can only
make reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
maintaining of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulations. However, the system can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against misstatements or losses.

) EREERAIPEE

EXe A5 R BAUMNEREE RN
BRI E K OE MR A B R B IR K
NEEEHEN BRI - AEERRE
BEANMEZEFENERAEEDR -
BFEW  SEBEH BEEKRYE - AR
AEHF —EHRAHR  FEREER
RAMEREBOEF - ARBWE
= HESXEBHMAONAEHRR &
RN RPN SEENRR - W E
HrAAfeREEEER sRERE
ERBEZEERZEGRANITNE
B ARl R HR 51 A A Bl LB 0 8 55 IR
FritmAEEEERLZBSREEM
R skhEZZE SR EEEA
BONREA °

ARBIREBEES R EGPIA _LTAR
AIMBRERR TAREERE - BAR
A EE RREEENRMAELMAR
BEIEMIES  UERAQREESE
ROBATNERATERAAREERN
BHE - BHESA —RIBRFERZ
EHBERAAREEEEAORET ML -
AR — B AR R RBAE AR I H R

2 SRRAARKEZSHE -

AABIFARARREE A BBEE R
BB EEEMIEHER RBEEKER B AR
MER - MARERERNRERMLK
BRFHAEMIEBENRE - AAQA
ERFIEF  AREEERRIFEER
HEE RIFRENSCEAEMRA
FUBEMEANBERKQM - R HE
RETHEAERE - ROIKER - A
% | E R BB L 35 ER PR A 1R AR 1R it
BEMIFBHRRE °

ZENMEERAT —B-REER

51



52

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and clear
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects.
Management of the Company provides all relevant information
to the Board, giving its members sufficient information and
explanation that it needs to discharge their responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
and the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of the Company,
respectively including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experiences, training programs and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The Board considers that there are no significant defects in the
Company’s risk management and internal control system in terms
of completeness, reasonableness and effectiveness.

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the
Board for its decision. The management team of the Company
holds meetings regularly to review and discuss with executive
Directors on daily operational issues, financial and operating
performance as well as to monitor and ensure the management
properly implement the directions and strategies set by the
Board.

The senior management of the Company has provided the Board
with sufficient explanation and information to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of financial and other information
put before it for approval.

Currently, the Group has not established an internal audit
function. The Board has reviewed the need for setting up an
internal audit function within the Group, and is of the opinion that
in view of the current scale and nature of the operations of the
Group, it is more cost effective to appoint external independent
professionals to carry out internal audit services for the Group.

The Board will continue, with the assistance of the Audit
Committee and external independent professionals if necessary,
to review and improve the Group’s internal controls system,
taking into account the prevailing regulatory requirements, the
Group’s business development and the interests of shareholders.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Au Wai Keung (“Mr. Au”) served as the company secretary
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016. Mr.
Au is a director of Arion and Associates Limited, a corporate
secretarial and accounting services provider in Hong Kong.
Mr. Au possesses the professional qualifications that the Stock
Exchange has considered acceptable and has taken no less
than 15 hours of professional training during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Mr. Au’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Chen
Weizhong, the chairman, CEO and executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. Au is responsible for providing advice to the Board on
corporate governance matters.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors.
All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company (www.hzlaohenghe.
com) and Stock Exchange after each Shareholders’ meeting.
The Articles allow a Shareholder to attend and vote at a general
meeting or to appoint a proxy, who needs not be a Shareholder,
to attend the meeting and vote thereat on his/her/its behalf.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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With respect to the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons for
election as Directors, please refer to the procedures available on
the website of the Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles. Shareholders who wish to move
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Shareholders and potential investors are welcome to communicate
with the Company by email: ir02226@hzlaohenghe.com.
Shareholders may also put forward their written enquiries or
requisitions to the Board at Balidian Town, Food and Industrial
Park, Wuxing District, Huzhou City, PRC (Attention: the Board of
Directors).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor relations
play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value, enhancing
the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. The Company discloses information in compliance
with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is
to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate and
complete, thereby enabling Shareholders, investors as well as
the public to make rational and informed decisions. Updated
key information and business development of the Group are also
available on the Company’s website to enable Shareholders and
investors to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and in particular, through general meetings
which provides a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board. Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) will be available at the AGMs of the Company to
address Shareholders’ queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure effective
Shareholders’ communication and transparency.
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There has been no change in the Articles since the Listing Date.
An up to date version of the Articles is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The 2016 AGM was an important occasion where the Board and
the Shareholders could communicate directly with each other.
The chairmen of the Board, the directors and the external auditor,
Ernst & Young, were present at the 2016 AGM to communicate
with the Shareholders. The 2016 AGM circular distributed to
all Shareholders before the 2016 AGM contained information
regarding the proposed resolutions.

In addition, the Company has announced its annual and interim
results in a timely manner in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

The Company will strive to strengthen investor relationships
and maintain transparency of the operating strategies, financial
performance and development prospects of the Company.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 December
2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment
holding company, and its subsidiaries established in the PRC are
primarily engaged in the manufacturing of cooking wine and other
condiment products in China under the “Lao Heng He” (“Z18F1”) brand.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under Note 1 to the financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue and operating profit for the year by principal activities is set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report and Note 5 and Note 6 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out on pages 84 to 91 of this annual report.

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of RMB7.2 cents per ordinary Share (the “Proposed Final Dividend”)
for the year ended 31 December 2016. Subject to the approval of
the Proposed Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the Company’s
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 31 May 2017 (the
“2017 AGM”), the Proposed Final Dividend is expected to be paid on or
about 4 July 2017.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

(A)

(B)

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and
Vote at the 2017 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
24 May 2017 to 31 May 2017 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to
determine the identity of members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the 2017 AGM, all Share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant Share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on 23 May 2017.

For Determining the Entitlement to the
Proposed Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
12 June 2017 to 15 June 2017, (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the Proposed Final Dividend, all completed Share
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant Share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 9 June 2017.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements in this
annual report.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 25 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the
laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB898.6 million of which RMB41.7 million
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2016.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note
26 to the financial statements in this annual report.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note 21 and Note 22
to the financial statements in this annual report.

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would give rise

to disclosure obligation pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18
of the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2016.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2016
and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian
Mr. Wang Chao

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Bihong (Resigned on 23 June 2016)
Mr. Sun Qingdong (Appointed on 23 June 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shen Zhenchang
Mr. Ma Chaosong
Mr. Lei Jiasu

Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles and the wishes of the Directors,
Mr. Sun Qingdong, Mr. Lei Jiasu and Mr. Shen Zhenchang will retire
from office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming 2017 AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The Company’s circular
to be dispatched to Shareholders will contain detailed information of the
Directors standing for re-election.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

BE HEFWEEARRAF L
™ & 25

ARBREFEAMERARR T —RNFLERE
B HEFIBERARBZERLEHES °

EE

HE_Z—RF+_A=+-—BLEEREENRN
FREOPEEZEFZTHIMT :

BITES
PREBIEE ()
AR A
TSk
FHUTEE

RWLFLE (RZF—REFERA
BRIEREE (R=T—REFEXHA

BYFITES
RS 5

BEMmELE

TZ=HEE)
T=RAREM)

REBABUNZGXREEZ BB FEREE &
REEELIRERERNEE _—T—EFRR
BERE LWFEREEERE  HERSETEER
WRBEEEE - ARFEFNRTH FRIRAEK
HIEMBRETESHOFS -

BYFHITES 2B LM

EXEeRERBUINFNTESRE LTRSS
BIBMGMEBYMBEL 2 FEERE - ARA/E
REVIFNTESOBELAL -

ZENMEERAT —B-REER 59



60

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EFBHS (88)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group as at the date of this annual report are set out in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 14 to 19
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors (including those
Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2017 AGM) has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries, as applicable,
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 16.1 and 16.2 of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2016.

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 15.2 and 15.3 of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management members
of the Group are decided by the Board with reference to the
recommendation given by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and other benefits, retirement
benefit scheme contribution) paid to the Company’s Directors in
aggregate for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 were
approximately RMB1,248,000 and RMB920,000, respectively.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits, retirement
benefit scheme contribution) paid to our Group’s five highest paid
individuals in aggregate for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2016 were approximately RMB147,000 and RMB308,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, no emoluments were paid by
our Group to any director of the Company or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 8 and Note 9 of
the financial statements in this annual report.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are
payable, for the year ended 31 December 2016 by our Group to or on
behalf of any of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors nor the controlling Shareholders
of the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or was likely
compete with, either directly or indirectly, the business of the Group.
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On 8 January 2014, Mr. Chen Weizhong and Key Shine Global Holdings
Limited (the “Covenantors”), and the Company (for itself and as trustee
for each of its subsidiaries) entered into a deed of non-competition (the
“Non-competition Deed”), pursuant to which each of the Covenanters
has irrevocably, jointly and severally given certain non-competition
undertakings to the Company (for itself and as trustee for each of
its subsidiaries). Details of which are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with Our Controlling Shareholders — Non-competition
Undertaking” in the Prospectus.

The Covenantors declared that they have complied with the
Non-competition Deed. The independent non-executive Directors
have conducted such review for the year ended 31 December 2016
and also reviewed the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the
Non-competition Deed has been fully complied.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company maintained Directors’ liability insurance to protect them
from any loss to which the Directors of the Company might be liable
arising from their actual or alleged misconduct.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters, no
contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence as at the end of the year or at any time during 2016.

LOAN OR GUARANTEE FOR LOAN
GRANTED TO THE DIRECTORS

During 2016, the Group had not made any loan or provided any
guarantee for any loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior
management, its ultimate controlling Shareholders or their respective
connected persons.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of the associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

Interests in Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2016
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Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares capital

B2 H

BRITRAE

Name of Director Bl B ERHE HEAR G EE BMAEA L

Mr. Chen Weizhong PR7ET ST A Interest in a controlled corporation 278,169,750 48.06%
(note) (P=E) A E R

Note: These shares are held by Key Shine Global Holding Limited (“Key Mt © ZEREH FKey Shine Global Holding Limited

Shine”). The entire issued share capital of Key Shine is owned by Mr.
Chen Weizhong. Mr. Chen Weizhong is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Key Shine under SFO.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company has any interests and/or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company and or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which will have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have
taken under the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which will
be required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 or the period
following 31 December 2016 up to the date of this annual report,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding company or
any of the subsidiaries of the Company’s holding company a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company or their respective associates to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate and none of the Directors and chief executive, or their
spouse and children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
such period.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as are known to the Board, the
following parties (other than any Directors or chief executives of the
Company) were recorded in the register, kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, as being directly or indirectly interested or
deemed to be interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of
the Company:
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of the Company as at 31 December 2016

EFEHRS

RARBREERG 2FR
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Approximate
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the Company’s

Number of issued Share
Nature of interests Shares held capital
EARRAE
BRTRA
Name #E Bty BRERGHUAR R AU
Key Shine Global Holdings Limited @ Key Shine Global Holdings ~ Beneficial Owner 278,169,750 48.06%
Limited®@ = 2PN
Ms. Xing Liyu © BRI E 22 1@ Interest of spouse 278,169,750 48.06%
fofBiEes
China Construction Bank Corporation R RRITIRD Person having a security 100,300,000 17.33%
BRARW interest in shares (note 4)
BERHERERZAL (Pt7E4)
Central Huijin Investment Ltd @ HRESIRERR Person having a security 100,300,000 17.33%
=/N G interest in shares (note 4)
BARNENERZALT (P 7E4)
Mr. Xie Zhikun fREERLE Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
corporation (note 5)
XEGEEER (Pt7E5)
Hwabao Overseas Markets Investment EF o BHNIIHRE2H Beneficial Owner 72,625,000 12.55%
No. 2 QDI Single Unit Trust Plan 32-8 Z%32-885QDIIE — ERBEBA (note 5)
BefErtatEl (PH7E5)
Chongaing Zhongxin Rongbang Investment EEPHBPREDL Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Center (Limited Partnership) (BREE) corporation (note 5)
R EE R GEH)
Chongging Zhongxin Rongchuang EEPHBANEARLAA  Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Investment Limited corporation (note 5)
XEHEEER (Pt7E5)
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued Share
Nature of interests Shares held capital
BERRT
BRITRA
Name HE ERME BRERGHAE R
China Innovative Capital Management Limited FHREIEAREIEAR /AR Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
corporation (note 5)
REHEE S (B7E5)
Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng Capital IR BEHEAEE Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Management Limited ARAF corporation (note 5)
Rz =R E s (BzE5)
Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited Natural Seasoning Beneficial owner 60,000,000 10.37%
(formerly known as China Seasoning International (HK) Limited Ezm#A A (note 6)
International (HK) Limited) (B8 AChina Seasoning (Ki3xe)
International (HK)
Limited)
Natural Seasoning International Limited Natural Seasoning Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
(formerly known as China Seasoning International Limited corporation (note 6)
International Limited) (B17% AChina Seasoning X &Il EE = (Pt7Ee)
International Limited)
Lunar Capital Partners IV LP Lunar Capital Partners IV Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
LP corporation (note 6)
=R (F7E6)
Lunar Capital Partners IV GP, LP Lunar Capital Partners IV Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
GP, LP corporation (note 6)
REHEE S (F7E6)
LCM-IV General Partner Ltd. LCM-IV General Partner Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
Ltd. corporation (note 6)
REHEEES (F7x6)
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The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 578,750,000
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

The entire issued share capital of Key Shine Global Holdings Limited is
legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen Weizhong.

Ms. Xing Liyu is the spouse of Mr. Chen Weizhong. Under the SFO, Ms.
Xing Liyu is deemed to be interested.

Key Shine Global Holdings Limited charged 100,300,000 Shares to China
Construction Bank Corporation on 16 November 2015, as security for its
subscription of a note issued by Key Shine Global Holdings limited. China
Construction Bank Corporation is owned by Central Huijin Investment
Ltd. as to approximately 57.26% and therefore Central Huijin Investment
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the 100,300,000 Shares which China
Construction Bank Corporation is interested in.

These Shares are held by Hwabao Overseas Markets Investment No. 2
QDI Single Unit Trust Plan 32-8 (EE# 3R/ 45 1% 4 25F K 5132-8 #QDII
B—&%{55T5tE) (“Hwabo Trust’), which is entrusted by Chongaing
Zhongxin Rongbang Investment Center (Limited Partnership) (B & &l
HLERL(BERAHE) (“Chongqging Zhongxin (LLP)”), which is managed
by Chongging Zhongxin Rongchuang Investment Limited (& & & # &b A%
& HBRAR]) (“Chongging Zhongxin”). Chongging Zhongxin is controlled
by China Innovative Capital Management Limited (h#fgtAIERNERA
[R27)) (“China Innovative Capital’), as to 95.00%. China Innovative
Capital is controlled by Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng Capital Management
Limited Jt R/ ZHEAEEZ AR A F) (‘Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng”),
as to 99.98%. Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng is controlled by Mr. Xie Zhikun
as to 99.00%. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Xie Zhikun, Beijing
Zhonghai Jiacheng, China Innovative Capital, Chongqging Zhongxin,
Chongging Zhongxin (LLP) is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Hwabo Trust.

BEED L DERAARR-_ZT—XRE+=A
=+—H2578,750,0000% 2 317D E ©

Key Shine Global Holdings Limited®&35E
BITRABHREREESEERES °

MHEZ L RREDEENRLE - RIBFHF R
HIEGRG - R E2 LA REERRRNDE
B -

RZZT—HF+— A+ 78 Key Shine
Global Holdingsi%#% 4 #9100,300,0004% J& 1
BERTHEERBIROERLT - EFRHR
BEKey Shine Global Holdings LimitedZ7TH)
EHEER - AEERRITRH AR LTS
HRESIREFRE LR AIEHIAI57.26%H)
B At PRESKREAREER AR
REBETEHERBITIRNVERATEADN
100,300,000/%f& {7 °

ZERM BEE o« FINTISIRE 29 K532-8
HoDIE — & ez 8 ((EHEFED 3
B ZTEBHEERTALRERL (AR
ER)(EBEHRHF (ERER)) 7% m=E
BRI (ERE%) HEETFRMAIKEEGR
AR ([EEHRE)) BB - EEPH AP
BIERERBRAR ([FHBAER]) 55
95.00% ) % o PHAAIEANH I RFF5
WMEAERARAR ([dEZFEEHB]) 25
99.98% )% o L RP B EHBMERLE
2 199.00% M) & o IRIRE F KB E GG -
REESE  ERPERH - PHRAIER -
EEFHLEETHN (BREE) SWE A
BEBEAFAENRD O -

ZENMEERAT —B-REER

67



68

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EFBRE (18

(6) Theses Shares are held by Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited.
Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Natural Seasoning International Limited, which is a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is majority
owned by Lunar Capital Partners IV LP. Lunar Capital Partners IV LP, a
Cayman exempted limited partnership managed by Lunar Capital Partners
IV GP, LP (as sole general partner), which is managed by LCM-IV General
Partner Ltd. (as sole general partner). By virtue of the SFO, each of LCM-
IV General Partner Ltd., Lunar Capital Partners IV GP, LP, Lunar Capital
Partners IV LP and Natural Seasoning International Limited is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Natural Seasoning International (HK)
Limited.

Save as disclosed herein, our Directors are not aware of any person
who will, as at 31 December 2016, have an interest or short position
in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to our
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly or indirectly interested in 10%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of
our Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors was aware that any other persons/entities (other than any
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company, its
members of the Group or associated corporations which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which had entered in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s largest customer
accounted for 13.9% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 50.9% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for 32.4% of the Group’s total purchases. The Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for 66.1% of the Group’s total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest suppliers or the Group’s five largest customers.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 561 full-time
employees, as compared to 303 employees as at 31 December 2015.
The Group enters into employment contracts with its employees to cover
matters such as position, term of employment, wage, employee benefits,
liabilities for breaches and grounds for termination. Remuneration of
the Group’s employees includes basic salaries, allowances, bonus and
other employee benefits and are determined with reference to their
experiences, qualifications, competence and general market conditions.

The emoluments payable to the Directors will depend on their
respective contractual terms under their employment contracts or
service agreements as approved by the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics. No
Director should determine his or her own remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest
paid individual in the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Company participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
(“MPF Schemes”) registered under the Mandatory Provident Scheme
Fund Ordinance. The contributions represent contributions payable to
the MPF Schemes by the Company in accordance with government
regulations.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
retirement benefits schemes based on a certain percentage of their
payroll to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to these retirement benefits schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

Contributions paid or payable for these retirement benefits schemes for
the year of 2016 are RMB4.3 million (2015: RMB2.7 million). No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in future years.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, our Group has not entered
into any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
which should be disclosed pursuant to the requirements of chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016, which did not constitute connected transactions
under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set out in Note 30 of the
financial statements in this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company places high value on its corporate governance practices
and the Board firmly believes that a good corporate governance
practices can improve accountability and transparency for the benefit of
the Shareholders of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Governance Code as its own code to
govern its corporate governance procedures. The Board also reviews
and monitors the practices of the Company from time to time to
maintain and improve a high standard of corporate practice practices.

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
33 to 55 of this annual report, the Company has complied with the
Governance Code in the year ended 31 December 2016. Information on
the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 33 to 55 of this annual
report.

INDEPENDENCE OF EXTERNAL
AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the
external auditor to ensure true obijectivity in the financial statements. All
services provided by the external auditor are required to be approved
by the Audit Committee. To ensure that the policy of restricting the
non-audit work done by the external auditor is strictly adopted by all
entities within the Group, appropriate policies and procedures have been
established for approval of engagement of the Group’s independent
external auditor, Ernst Young, to provide services to the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable development in the long
term, continuously create value for its employees and customers, and
foster good relationships with its suppliers. The Group understands
that employees are its valuable assets, and the realisation and
enhancement of employees’ values will facilitate the achievement of
the Group’s overall goals. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group provided generous social security benefits to its employees to
motivate them while heightening their sense of belonging. The Group
also understands the importance of maintaining good relationships with
its suppliers and customers to the overall development of the Group.
The Group places emphasis on supplier selection and encourages fair
and open competition to foster long-term relationships with quality
suppliers on the basis of mutual trust. To maintain the competitiveness
of its brand and products, the Group abides by the principles of honesty
and trustworthiness and commits itself to consistently provide quality
products to establish a reliable service environment for its customers.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no significant and
material dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Summary of Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) Report

Honworld Group Limited, as a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
attaches great importance to fulfilling its obligations on environmental,
social and governance, pursues long-term sustainable development
and devotes itself to building leading cooking wine brand in China.
Meanwhile, as an old firm with more than 100 years of history, Lao Heng
He persists on the ancestral principle of “Perseverance and Faith” and
has been keen on creation while inheriting brewing, so as to advance
towards the next century course.
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Active Performance of Environmental, Social and
Governance Responsibilities

While continuing to provide customers with high quality and healthy
natural-brewing cooking wine and other condiment products in different
levels, Lao Heng He also actively assumes its responsibilities for
environment, society and governance. To this end, the Company has
established a series of policies on environment, social and governance
taken and implemented respective measures. During the reporting period
in 2016, there was no violation against laws and regulations related to
environment, society and governance and no material adverse effect on
environment and society.

As for the environmental aspect, the Company has not only adopted
effective harmless disposal of the residue of soya, acid-sludge, bean
dregs, vinasse and liquid waste in the process of brewing, but also
instilled the concept of sustainable development into the manufacturing
and enterprise operation to enhance the utilization efficiency of
resources and energy while reducing the emission to the environment.
For example, the Company has reused the vinasse (the major by-
product) produced in brewing yellow rice wine to produce vinasse-
scented cooking wine and cream-form cooking wine, which improves the
utilization efficiency of raw material, and also reduces waste emission. In
addition, the Company adopted technologies such as soaking soybean
wastewater membrane processing recycle and heat recovery of spray
sterilization, so as to improve the utilization efficiency of water resources
and reduce the discharge of wastewater.

As for the social aspect, the Company regards food safety as “lifeline”
and sets out comprehensive and strict management standards and
procedures on the selection of raw materials and suppliers, quality
control of productive process, management of package and storage
and transportation and after-sales services. The Company also sets up
food safety self-assessment team to regularly take a comprehensive
self-assessment for our food safety. At the time of ensuring the quality
of products and services, the Company also put effort into protecting
intellectual property, preventing corruption, protecting the rights and
interests of employees and supporting social public welfare undertaking.
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Initiative Disclosure of Environmental, Social and
Governance Information

On the basis of taking responsibilities actively, Lao Heng He also
discloses environmental, social and governance information initiatively.
According to the requirements relating to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report Guideline of Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
Lao Heng He will promptly announce an initial environmental, social
and governance report which discloses the environmental, social and
governance information of the Company during the reporting period in
2016.

Keeping on paying attention to opinions of interest related parties by
our Company, in preparing the environmental, social and governance
report, our Company communicates with the internal and external
important interest related parties of the Company on the issue about the
environmental, social and governance through questionnaire survey and
interview. We acquire 229 questionnaires in total during the questionnaire
survey and the survey results will become a strong evidence for our
Company to disclose the initial environmental, social and governance
report.

For more information about the environmental, social and governance
of Lao Heng He for the financial year of 2016, please refer to the initial
environmental, social and governance report to be published by the
Company. After the publication of the report, you can view or download
from the Company’s official website.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the public float as required by the
Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, so far as known to the Directors, there was no
non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations which would
have a material impact on the Group.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There are no material subsequent events undertaken by the Company or
by the Group after 31 December 2016.

AUDITORS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2016, it
was approved that Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the international
and PRC auditors of the Company respectively for the year 2016, and
the Board was authorised to determine and approve their remunerations.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

There was no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Weizhong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
LERVA 72 2 GRS

/“‘-l Ernst & Young ZXBHH BB Tel® 3%: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BBPIRAZE1R Fax{EE: +852 2868 4432
EY 1 Tim Mei Avenue iz AE221E ey.com
E* Central, Hong Kong
Independent auditor’s report BIYZEMBRE
To the shareholders of Honworld Group Limited BEENBEERATIMERR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Honworld
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 84 to 164, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REFETEE ()

Key audit matter

HEETEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZERAEETHRNTELHE

Existence of inventories

FHEFE

The Group has a significant balance of inventories and
needs to maintain its inventories at an appropriate level to
meet the future market or production needs. The inventory
balances represented approximately 34% of the Group’s
total assets and the majority of inventories are base wine
amounting to approximately RMB917 million. The existence
of base wine could not be easily substantiated via physical
observation since they were massive in quantity and this
need involved laboratory examination to validate its chemical
contents.

Therefore, this area is of higher assessed risks of material
misstatement and is identified as a key audit matter.

The related disclosures of inventories are included in note
15.

EEEAAEFEARATEEREERTNEFEURR
AROTEHEEFTRK - FEAROE EXEREEN
34%  BRHAFERER  HEBORARKNTEET
HREEBEGABRTZERERBUBEELLEXRD -
HEENFETERBREMERMESEE -

Bk - e 77 A A 8 S B AR SR RO AT LR
THRRBERTEE

R A —

FEMEBREHNHTES -

We performed the following audit procedures:

1. Assessed the Group’s internal controls over the
inventories;
2. Observed the Group’s physical stock-counts at the end

of the current reporting period and randomly selected
certain inventory samples (the “Inventory Samples”)
during the observation. Obtained the laboratory
examination results of the chemical contents of the
Inventory Samples from an independent third party
examination agency (the “Laboratory Examination
Results”) engaged by us; and

3. We assessed the results regarding the independence
and competence of industry experts from the
examination agency and the research institutions (the
“Experts”), and involved the Experts assist us to assess
the reasonableness of (i) the input-output ratios of
Group’s base wine with different alcohol levels, which
represented the proportional relations that exist between
input volumes of raw materials and output volumes of
base wine, and (i) the Laboratory Examination Results.

BMBRITT TOIEZER

1. iHE BEREEHTFEMNRIPES

2. B EREEAHREHHARANERBRTERRE
pEREETETHFESR (FEER])  ERMNER
MBYE =TRBEEBHFERRCERINERE
miagER ((ERERBER]) &

3. AL EE MR RENTRER ([EXR]) 0
SURENFEEEER Y ABERBE I
UTEENESEE: () EXENTRBEEEBN
BAERLEE (AIRMEHRAEEEBELEZ HH
LEBIRER) - R()E R =R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
‘Y HENRE (48)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REFETEE ()

Key audit matter

HEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZERAEETHRNTELHE

Provisions of inventories

FERE

The Group has a significant inventory balance and need to
maintain majority of its base wine at an appropriate level for
a period over 1 year to meet the future production needs.
We focused on this area because inventory provisions
involves significant estimation of the net realisable values
(the “NRV”) of the inventories which are influenced by
assumptions concerning future sales and usage and
judgements in determining the appropriate level of inventory
provisions against identified surplus or obsolete items.

The related disclosures of inventory provision are included in
note 3.

%%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%%&-iui%ﬁW%Eﬁ%%
BHEFSNEERFARRARENEET K - HMABITLT
EﬁmEHBEA¢? BB REFERNERFE ([R2RFE]D &
BXRfEE - MERRREE REBBERAREAREFERY
REBRBHRIBERNEETEBEKTEHE
BZE AT -

FEREOEBRERNHES -

We performed the following audit procedures:

1. Obtained analysis of the inventory provisions
prepared by management and reviewed the
key assumptions used to determine the NRV of
inventories as follows:

(i) compared the estimates of expected future
sales of inventories to the recent sales prices
and sales rate; and

(if) compared the estimates of production usage
of raw materials to the recent production
records; and

2. Recalculated the expected provisions based on the

above key assumptions to assess the mathematical
accuracy of the calculation.

BT T TIEZER

1, BB TN EE ﬁé@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ 5B R DT IR
EARETFENERFEMNEEZRR
() 1B T ETERT AR R E BT R B S E
BREERETHR &
(ii) %ﬁFMﬂEFE%EME% 3T BR A EE RC B

EITHER - R

2. B EERN LA BRROBREE - UG
HYBREREREE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BN HRS (48)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REFETEE ()

Key audit matter

HEETEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZERAEETHRNTELHE

Deferred tax for withholding taxes

TR HI 3 HYAE AL B R

The Group’s provision for deferred tax for withholding taxes
arising from the distribution of dividends from the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China is subject to the estimations
of the Group’s future operating results and the judgements
on the timing of payments of the dividends in the future.
This area is identified as a key audit matter as the
estimation process is significantly based on assumptions,
which are affected by projected future market and economic
conditions.

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 23.

EEEGE SEEERRAMHNEARIRERSMES
MIBHBAAEHEEERABEIORRY BRERKEE
FENMF RY AR R EREEHE - BREFHERE
BARRE EERF R AR S MEBERRAFEBROMRE
B T A R BRI SR AT E IR o

MERE R B BN RE3 )2 23

Our audit procedures included evaluating management’s
forecast and judgements on the timing of payments of
dividends in the future by obtaining evidences to support
the management’s estimation and judgement, such as,
historical accuracy of management’s assumptions, historical
sales growth trend and dividend pay-out ratio.

BMNEZRERTFEBERNSERERRNE S LRI - ELH
ERERBENRELXEHERE MG RABNZFR
YEIRE RN B 1% IR B A TR R A TR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B e HRS (88)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016

FHRESNHEMLESR

BERREFAHEMENEE - HWENBREF
BANER  ETEEGEMBERE MR
BEHMRBEIRSE -

BPESEaMBHRENBERL TRELMER -
BT EAME R BEREATANETER -

ERMEFGRMBHRERE - RANEEZHE
HE# - @i ZEEMERRT R
EUBHRRIBEMESZBIETRTHNBERE
BEANT - EFEERBERERML - ERHMAE
WITO T MREMBSEMEHAEKRHR
Rt - RPIAREZEE - RO L BERE
RAWE °

EENGEMBHRRARE
MEE

BERREFAAEREER G EAZEERM
B B B 75 3R 5 2 R R BB A RGP B BR AR E
RREEMTENEAMBERE - USHREMH
BRIFLEEMATFHORKR - WHERB/ELR
B P BEMERA R BT IFE RN IGF A RR N 8 2
MEAHERRAAFNAEHNEE

EREGAEMBHRRE - BAREFAEERN
i BERERFELENEN  YEERBRATHR
BESBELLAMNER  UREAKERLES

BEER RIE BERARNEFAER BEEES
BIUFIULLE  SREEMERNELTR -

EZBEEWMY ERAREFETRA
EE ESRENMBREERE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
Zgil_LiI- ;ﬂgﬂiiﬁi (mE )

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B eEhRS (48)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By SENRE (18

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai Stephen.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2017

R BT RS M BRR
ARENTRE (&)

BPERBAZESRIER  FHARMETAE
BB ENABERERER YRGB FIER
BRI EMEARS T ERIIBILIENE R
FEMEMEER - URAEEROERT - NN
I o

HEEFZEGEBNFET - HAIEEMWLSE
BHAMGAEVBRROBARREERE - AWME
PRERES BIH - HMERBEI RS P HlEL
BH - BRIPEBEATAFARABRREELSEHE
HEBHFERNBERT - WRABABEHMIR
SREBRXFRENNAMRRBBELENAR
M HPPRETRERSTEBZEE

HEARB I Z AN RS B ETIEE & % A BHu
Kin Fai Stephen °

ZKEF BT
S ES -]
)

—E—+F=ZA=+H

ZENMEERAT —B-REER

83



84

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

A A\ 4O 2o
mhlEn®k

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE —E—FE+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes
B aE
REVENUE WA 5
Cost of sales SHE KA
Gross profit EF
Other income and gains H A KUz 5
Selling and distribution expenses $HE RS SHR X
Administrative expenses THAX
Other expenses HEmfx
Finance costs BhE R AR 7
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A1 7 6
Income tax expense s Bl 10
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFHE
Attributable to: THIA LT REA
Owners of the parent SARERA
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BAREERB/REA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EhEsREF
OF THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted BEARREE

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016

2016
At
RMB’000
ARETT

831,149
(385,453)

445,696
8,426
(81,225)
(83,065)
(1,271)
(40,606)

247,955

(41,319)

206,636

206,636

RMB38.4 cents
ARK¥38.4%0

2015
—T—hF
RMB’000
AREFIT

798,861
(347,989)

450,872
11,875
(75,073
(80,265
(105
(32,609

274,695
(46,167)

228,528

228,528

RMB44.1 cents
AR#E44 15>



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

& O\ T\ POl
ROEBHRRE
Year ended 31 December 2016 &= —F—NF+_A=+—HItFE

2016 2015
—E-XRF 1T
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 206,636 228,528
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hib4iRE WA
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified  REZEIBESHHEEIBEH
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: EMiREWA -
Exchange differences: MEH =5
Exchange differences on translation of BMEGINEREY =58
foreign operations 233
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMESEA (HRBIE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 233
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEREZESWABEE
FOR THE YEAR 219,751 228,761
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

iR ISR IR &

31 December 2016 —ZE— R E+-A=+—H

Notes
B e

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB REE 13
Prepaid land lease payments TS £t AE &R IE 14
Other intangible assets HivmEEE
Prepayments for non-current assets FEREEEZFENFHE
Time deposits TEHTF R 18
Deferred tax assets ERERIEE B 23
Total non-current assets IERBEEBE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 7e 15
Trade receivables FEWE 5508 16
Prepayments, deposits and FENFRIE - Ze R

other receivables Hoth pE U K8 17
Time deposits TEHF R 18
Pledged deposits B IFFR 18
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEY 18
Total current assets B EERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables ENBSIE 19
Other payables and accruals H fth BT 501 K JEETIE B 20
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 84717 R H b &% 21

Tax payable FESRTIIE

Total current liabilities mENBERRE
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBAEME

CURRENT LIABILITIES
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2016
At
RMB’000
ARETT

810,088
51,035
414
335,408
26
2,666

1,199,637

1,088,440
162,471

193,386

69,370
159,014
291,815

1,964,496

143,819
78,510
777,264
34,701

1,034,294

930,202

2,129,839

2015
—F—RF
RMB’000
ARBET T

629,556
26,683
414
113,493

2,891

773,037

945,469
141,959

249,279
2,874

186,048

1,625,629

118,459
55,847
570,345
37,003

781,654

743,975

1,617,012



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
e iRin% (1)

31 December 2016 —E— R FE+-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR¥T T AREF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and AT EARTT R EADE K
other borrowings 21 71,723 74,415
Other long term liabilities HivRAABE 24 137,333 4,505
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEEE 23 18,774 14,761
Total non-current liabilities JEmB B EERE 227,830 93,681
Net assets BEFE 1,902,009 1,423,331
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners of the parent & A B#HE AEL#ER
Share capital %N 25 1,767 1,584
Reserves i 26 1,900,242 1,421,747
Total equity B 1,902,009 1,423,331

Chen Weizhong
BRE R
Director

EF

Sheng Mingjian
BREARE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

™ O\ §35 € &4
rOEREEMR
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZT— "F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BREEEAEE
Statutory Exchange
Share Share  Merger ~ Capital  surplus ~ Warrant fluctuation  Retained Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits equity
A R EX
BE RiveB AfRE ERRE 2HEGE EIRE RIEE RENE  EaeR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT
(note 26) ~ (note 26)  (note 26)  (note 26)
(Wroe)  (Wizioe)  (Bisio)  (Misioe)
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1F-A-A 1,584 769,489 (1,000) 7,003 9,794 7,959 10,539 449,036 1,254,404
Profit for the year FNFIE - - - - - - - 228528 228,528
Qther comprehensive income EREMFEYA
for the year:
Exchange differences related BN ERERN
to foreign operations ERER - - - - - - 233 - 233
Total comprehensive income FREAMAEE
for the year - - - - - - 233 228,628 228,761
Final 2014 dividend declared BER-Z-MF
R - (51,879 - - - - - - (51,879
Gain upon expiry of warrants SRR
(note26 (d) (M6(0)) - - - - - (7959 - - (7.959)
Transfer from retained profits ERARERH - - - - 5,356 - - (5,356) -
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1%F
+-A=1+-H 1,584 717,614 (1,000) 7,003 15,150 - 10,772 672,208 1,423,331
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

o O\ k35 >€ =4 &=
rOR SR (88)
Year ended 31 December 2016 &= —FT—"NF+_-_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRR NEE
Statutory  Exchange
Share Share Merger Capital surplus fluctuation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
EE B
Ba  ROEE AHRE  EXEE  BHRE RIERE  RENE BEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR AREBTRT ARETR ARBTRT ARETR ARETRr ARETR ARETx
(note 26)  (note 26)  (note 26)
(Mi26)  (Hztoe)  (Mfx26)

At 1 January 2016 RZZE-"5-A—-H

Profit for the year FERHE

Other comprehensive income  EREMEAKRA -
for the year:
Exchange differences related to /BN EBHEHN

foreign operations ERZR

Total comprehensive income FRiZRMALEE
for the year

Final 2015 dividend declared ~ EER-F—1%

REIRE
Issue of shares (note 26) BRG (Fii2s)

RV EIRR (H3E25)
ERaREFHH

Share issue expenses (note 25)
Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2016 RZE—1E

+ZA=1+-H 1,767

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2016, these reserve accounts comprise the
consolidated reserves of RMB1,900,242,000 (2015: RMB1,421,747,000)

717,614 (1,000) 7,003 15,150

672,208
206,636

1,423,331
206,636

206,636 219,751

(45,650)
304,507
(113) -
- (4,811) -

(45,650)
304,690
(113)

976,358* (1,000)* 7,003* 19,961* 23,887  874,033* 1,902,009

* R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—0 ZZHFH
EEEREMBERRZANGERFEBEAR
#1,900,242,000C (ZE —HF: AR
1,421,747,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

Y=\ =
OIRENE
Year ended 31 December 2016 &= —

Z—RFETZA=+—RHILFE

2016
—RE
Notes RMB’000
B sk ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM KRETHNERSRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax i 258 B AR 247,955
Adjustments for: BT FIEFEE -
Finance costs BhE R A 7 40,606
Interest income FLEWA (1,018)
Depreciation e 13 32,017
Amortisation of prepaid land lease HTEN LA E A
payments 14 1,080
Gain upon expiry of warrants EI ER R AR i 7B W a 5 -
320,640
Increase in inventories FEE M (142,971)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEWRE 5508 (), w (20,512)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TEMFUE - Re MEMER
deposits and other receivables IE (), 56,430
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERE SaEEhn GRd) 25,360
Increase in other payables and accruals Hin B R ETIEE 30,174
Decrease in other long term liabilities HiwRHABERLD (172)
Cash generated from operations EXaREnRge 268,949
Interest received EFIE 1,018
Interest element of finance lease rental BERERSNROF ST
payments 7 (2,265)
PRC tax paid B EHE (39,383)
Net cash flows from operating activities RELEEHAFRESRE 228,319
CASH FLOWS FROM RETBNESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, WEEME - BE MKIEEE
plant and equipment (219,258)
Prepayments for items of property, ENYE - BEK
plant and equipment B ICEPE ¢ (221,915)
Addition to prepaid land lease payments A L b AR E FOE N (25,969)
Prepayment for acquisition of leasehold land AR & + #h Y T8 5% =
Increase in time deposits TE BT FR38 00 (225,536)
Net cash flows used in investing activies ~ R EZEHFH LR E (692,678)
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2015
—h#F
RMB’000
ARBTT

274,695

32,609
(223)
27,354

510
(7,959)

326,986
(114,981)
45,941

(76,621)
(57,149)
16,505
(179)

140,502
223

(22,633)

118,092

(174,419)

(92,446)

(19,840)
(1,054)

(287,759)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

meIRERS

% (&)

Year ended 31 December 2016 &= —FT—"NF+_-_A=+—HItFE

2016 2015
—AE —hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®T T ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM METHNEESRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS 3008 25 304,690 -
Share issue expenses e TR > 25 (113) -
New interest-bearing bank and G BERTT R E A 5K
other borrowings 1,003,560 595,660
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BBt BIRTT R EME K
other borrowings (778,760) (423,660)
Increase in long term payables R AR FE S SRIEE N 133,000
Dividends paid BERRE (45,650) (61,879)
Interest paid 2AFE (39,143) (32,609)
Capital element of finance lease rental MEMERSNROARES I Y
payments (20,573) -
Proceeds from finance lease BEBERBFEIA - 55,000
Secured deposit placed for finance lease AEMEREFAZEEMFR = (5,500)
Net cash flows from financing activities REMETHNFRERE 557,011 137,016
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBELEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS g, CRd) B (32,651)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHRERIRNESEEY
of year 186,048 218,466
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ X&) 7 &2 %58 13,115 238
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREASRELEEY
AT END OF YEAR 18 291,815 186,048
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
4 December 2012 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
registered office address is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”) were principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
condiment products under the brand name of “Lao Heng He” in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Key Shine Global
Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”).

On 16 January 2014, the Company issued the prospectus and
launched a public offering of 125,000,000 shares at an offer
price of HK$7.15 per share. The Company’s shares were listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on
28 January 2014 (the “Listing”).
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31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1. AFER (&)
(CONTINUED)
As 31 December 2016, the Company had direct and indirect R-ZZE—RF+_A=+—H &XAQ7F
interests in its subsidiaries, all of which are private limited REWBARFTHEEE MEEES

liability companies (or, if incorporated/registered outside Hong
Kong, have substantially similar characteristics to a private
company incorporated in Hong Kong), the particulars of principal
subsidiaries are set out below:

ZEWB AR ALERRAR (R
BTN ER - EEEE
SRR 2 A E AR EANIER) - BRIE
EHBABFEHIET ¢

Nominal value of

Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity

establishment and issued/registered attributable to the
Name place of operations share capital Company Principal activities
T R ER BRI/ EfEARNR
&8 E$ick HEMBRAEE BEADH TEXH
Direct Indirect
B Gk
Lao Heng He Group Limited® Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
ZENEBERARY Ei 18T REER
Huzhou Chenshi Tian Niang PRC/Mainland China HK$14,250,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Co., Limited®@ products
MR RIEE X BB AR HE/ REN 14,250,000/ T AR@AE
Huzhou Cheng De Trading PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Co., Limited® @ products
MBS HERART B/ RER AR #1,200,000,0007C HiRm it
Zhejiang Changxing Sanhetang PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Trading Co., Limited®© products
FIRE=ALEHERLTN  FE/ FER AR#500,000,0007C HRm %
Zhejiang Changxing Hengze PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Trading Co., Limited® © products
HIREEZESHERAF HE/ REN AR#150,000,0007 AR@AE
Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery PRC/Mainland China RMB11,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Limited® @ condiment products
N EEMEEFRAFCO HRE /R E R AK#11,000,0007T EEREERRR
Huzhou Laohenghe Wine PRC/Mainland China RMB38,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Limited® @ condiment products
ENEACRIVE L YNCIEE HE/ RER AR%38,000,0007T EERHERRA
ZEAMEERAR =B FFR



94

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

21

CORPORATE INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@) The financial statements of these subsidiaries were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

(b) The statutory financial statements of the entity prepared under
IFRSs were audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong.

(c) The statutory financial statements of these entities prepared under
the People’s Republic of China Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles were audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP).

(d) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the laws of
PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

IFRS 14

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Amendments to a number of IFRSs

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16
Amendments to IAS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40
IFRIC 22

Amendments to IFRS 12
Included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1
Included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 28
Included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*
Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?
Leases®
Disclosure Initiative'
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'
Transfer of Investment Property?
Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 CHEMEREKREMMW

98

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, except IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and IFRS 16 Leases, the Group considers that these new and
revised IFRSs may result in changes in accounting policies but
are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
IFRSs. In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15
to address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments
are also intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018, and is in the process of making an
assessment on the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in IAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently assessing the impact
of IFRS 16 upon adoption.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHEHE

100

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made as at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTHTHEME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties BEL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: UTALHERRABEAEBRFBE :
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (a) WAL TALTHZATREKZE
family and that person FmRZAL
0) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) bl e HREE I AL E
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (ii) HAKEEEALEN
B3
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (iii) RBAEBESIAEEE AT
the Group or of a parent of the Group; HMIEEEEKE
or B
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) ZATEFE T EMIEHENE
applies: g2
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same (i) ZEREAAEEBR %
group; BHKE AT
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (ii) ERAS—ER (H5—
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow BENP AT MEAT
subsidiary of the other entity); HERWE QA A&
NEIREEDRE
(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (ifi) ZERm
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same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) BERAE—RE-FEEN
other entity is an associate of the third entity; BENE ME—EBESAS
ZE=FERBOBEAT

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ZERAANEE N EARE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an BEEHAENERERESR
entity related to the Group; AR BB R AR

(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (viy ZEEH@ )IﬁﬁﬁﬁlJ}\ti
person identified in (a); and il ol A RE )

(vii)  a person identified in (a)() has significant influence (i) @OERINATEHZER
over the entity or is a member of the key BEBEEARTENSIABZE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent B(kzxEENT AT
of the entity). HNFrEEEEBHRE -

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii)  ZEERAEEEMA 2K
part, provides key management personnel services 8 MAEBRAEEZ
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. BARREFEEEASR
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

M BERREARITE

BREZTIRIN W% - BMERRETIR
BCAS R R EH T B RAE DR BB 1RSI AR
ME - BERREERBOKAK  BFE
BEEREZEEEZZEERN MR
TR E i 2 M E R EERA -

ME - BELSBEEREECMELDN
TH mMgERREBR —MRELE
HREIEERP I - R AERER
WERT  BREABRINT HBERZ
EEMNREEEREAELR  JIEEEE
H-MhE BMEREENEZLESH
TEEH IAEBESEZSEIER
AREARTAFEAFTROENEE X
FLAMHMEHTE -

FEENE  BELRESRE NG
AR ERFRABMEMBERAEE
FpEETE - RUBNAEANTE
FERMAT -

Buildings 5% BF 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms HEYEEE RN FHAE
Machinery and equipment* 5% to 20% N Y 5%%20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% to 33",% BMEEE 20%ZE33Y,%
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
* Included in the machinery and equipment are earthen jars, for * WRLBEBIERIE  HGstaE A

which the estimated useful lives are 20 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

2.4 TESHTHEBE (H)

W% BERREBEURITE ()

ME - BEMRERE (BREMNSNS
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B BAAHIBREAREBREARET
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B o FE 3 T2 1 2 B 3 2 (5 4R A R
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BREE (BERM)

BRI 2 BV EER A ERRIZK
Ait& - REBAGEMKBELEE
ZRABWERMZ RVE BREE
ZAFERFEHAFERSBRIER - F
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BEEHNEE IRZBETVEELRR
ERREETRENE - AIERFHE
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the
Group under operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

2.4 TESHTHEBE (H)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

RERHMEHMEE (HF)

RE&ENE
B RERHE

B B T 3R] B E Y BB AR BT IS
BEZERMEEFBARIFTESRE
EoNYFHER REEEERAE
A% 1) 3 75025 DA B8 5 B AN RUAE fRD R (E 2 48
FTE o SHHBHKAR - BZ B EAK
BIrmgonE Yt ABRERFEA
ADEE D 2 BRSAKA - BERF R #
HIFFABREmR Z EMBA RS - B
BEEEZEBERIINBERERRREK
A (BERME) REMRAX (5REZ
HME) e

BHRRAEHEE

EREE (L (WER) —BeMEEN
—WMok—HERABEEREEL —HD) £
THE M & SCHUB R (AR EE AR
BHBARRAMER) :

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have . WHZIBEEERERENENE
expired; or [Em + 3k
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows o AREFBCRHEEZWHMEER SRS

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

2.4 TESHTHEBE (H)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
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after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised Bl SE R RER 2 B B 1B ] B 18 7 R 1K
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance BR B Mg ansk A o s N E & U
account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to B - AlEefEABERNEMEL
other expenses in the statement of profit or loss. A o

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e € )

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and other
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and other borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and financial liabilities
included in other long term liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

TESHHEBE (F)

TREE
AL EZ R E

EREBERVBERR DD BREATF
Bt ABmzemBEXRERLEME
(@)

FTE £ B A ER V)5 HERE LA FER
g mAERREMER  AMBKER
JEIEZXBRRAS o

AEEZEMABRREERNESREAR
H A BRI ~ 51 B IRIT REAE KA
REMEHEETNERESE -

H&: &

TRABEIAEIORNEM TR

B REMEL

VI HERIZ - FHRIRT &E@FME&
NERMERIZBERATE - BUB
ZEEBWTEKXR  BIRKAFTE - B
%m&%ﬁ%%%ﬂ%ﬁwﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ
BRI R IHR PR AR ERA

%%&$Kﬁ&%%$ﬁEﬁﬁ“&m
ERBERMEIASEED ZEAX
AR E - BEREMETEETABRRR
ZEATEBRA

ZENMEERAT —B-REER

109



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESHHERE (F)

110

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 TESHTHEBE (H)

Revenue recognition W ATESR

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic WA TR R AT fem ANEH -
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be I Bz WA BE S EREST E R IR N5 B
measured reliably, on the following bases: FLAMER :

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and (a)
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

HEBMMBAEMNAAREL
MEXRBRENGSCEBEREES
X YEAAKETBHOELR
mE MR R EAA AR RN
BEIREANE BRI G RRER

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective (b)
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

MABUWAME - AEF T A F
BRI A B 55 T A A
RERRBRERE (WER) Rz
ARG RSBAERERKR S
BEEREFE
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(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease (c) HHEESWAMS @ KREBEHIE
terms. HERTAEINIER ©

Employee retirement benefits

According to the rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its
PRC employees at certain percentages of the basic salaries
predetermined by the local governments. The state-sponsored
retirement plan is responsible for the entire retirement benefit
obligations payable to retired employees and the Group has no
further obligations for the actual retirement benefit payments or
other post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.

The contributions are recognised as expenses when the
Company consumes the economic benefit arising from service

provided by an employee in exchange for employee benefits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee retirement benefits (Continued)
Early retirement and retirement benefits

During the fiscal 2005 restructuring, the Group undertook the
expense related to both the retirement and the early retirement
schemes for the medical and social welfare of those early
retired and retired employees as of 30 June 2005. The Group
recognised the relevant estimated liabilities as well as charges
to the statement of profit or loss once the Group undertook the
obligations. These benefits are unfunded.

Where these schemes fall due more than 12 months after the
date of the financial statements, they shall be discounted using
the appropriate discount rate, and carried at discounted amounts
as liabilities. The discount rate is determined using the yield
rate of government bonds with similar terms at the date of the
financial statements.

Actuarial gains or losses include the experience adjustment (the
impact of difference between the previous actuarial assumption
and actual results) and the impact of changes on actuarial
assumption. The actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income when incurred and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss in a subsequent period.

Interest expense is charged to the statement of profit or
loss and is derived from the discount rate determined at the
commencement of the retirement scheme within an accounting
period and the early retirement scheme multiplying with the
average present value over the entire terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESHHERE (F)

116

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is the Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the financial statements of the Company
for the purpose of aligning with the presentation currency of the
Group. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

24
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain Hong Kong subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Tax provision

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are made accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
assessed periodically to take into account all the changes in tax
legislation and practices.

Deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities have not been established for income
tax and withholding tax that would not be payable on certain
undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in Mainland China if the
directors consider that the timing of the reversal of the related
temporary differences in relation to the undistributed earnings of
the subsidiaries in Mainland China can be controlled and such
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future. For those undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China that are considered to be repatriated and
distributed by way of dividends, the related deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

(a) Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value of an
item of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements
in production, or from a change in the market demand
for the product or service output of the asset, expected
usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear,
the repair and maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are different from the previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed
at each financial year end date based on changes in
circumstances. The carrying amounts of the property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 13.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

EZgc R MG
(%)

ol

(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

HEtTRERE (F)

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables (b) EWKEZFERAEMER
B2 HE

The policy for provision for impairment losses of the AEBREEBBEEIRRIRE
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability, the AU e FEUNE S RE N
aged analysis of trade and other receivables and on H A ERRIE 2 R DT AR E
management’s judgement. A considerable amount BREZHBEL - RFFEZERE
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate WEIE 7 xR B IR S AEL
realisation of these receivables, including the current REHE  BEIZEBFPERZE
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each BYRTFWEIFES - MEAEER
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the PR EL  BEENK
Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of BeVRUE - RIRTBEZRVERRIMER -
their ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required.

(c)  Write-down of inventories to net realisable value (c) MWRFEFEZJEEFE

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
for those identified obsolete and slow-moving inventories
and inventories with a carrying amount higher than net
realisable value. The assessment of the provision required
involves management’s judgement and estimates on
which are influenced by assumptions concerning future
sales and usage and judgements in determining the
appropriate level of inventory provisions against identified
surplus or obsolete items. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have impact on the carrying
amounts of inventories and the write-down/write-back of
inventories in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

EZgc R MG
(%)

ol
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(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Early retirement and retirement benefits

The Group has recognised the early retirement and
retirement benefits as a liability. The initial recognition of
early retirement and retirement benefits is measured at
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
benefits for early-retired and retired employees. When the
Group determines the best estimate, it takes into account
headcount changes of early-retired and retired employees,
effect on future expenditure arising from inflation of prices
and other factors. When selecting a proper discount
rate, the Group takes into account the average period of
future payment for early retirement and retirement benefits
and other factors. The difference between the actuarial
assumptions and actual results will have an impact on the
relevant accounting estimation. Although management
considered that the above assumptions are reasonable,
any changes in assumptions may affect the amount of
provision for early retirement and retirement benefits. The
assumptions that the Group used in measuring the early
retirement and retirement benefits are disclosed in note
24,
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4. @

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of condiment products. For management purposes, the Group
operates in one business unit and has one reportable operating
segment as follows:

. The food segment manufactures and sells condiment
products.

As all of the Group’s revenue is derived from sales of its products
to the customers in the PRC and all of the Group’s identifiable
non-current assets are located in the PRC, no geographical
information as required by IFRS 8 Operating Segments is
presented.

Information about major customers
Revenue derived from sales to individual customers amounting

to 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue for the reporting
period is set out in the following table:

2 EHER

n

AEBTERFTARMNEERBEER
BeophBEME  ARENE —XKE
(g% AE—ER2|EENEHmT

. R DEEENHEERARR

el 34 A 46 1) 2 U A 3 7K 8 0 4 o B
REHERES  BARERBTHR
FRB ARG E - RS
2 0 T R 5 R B BB AT 5 A2 T
B o

RBEEEFZEHR

TRV R HEHREEAEE RS
10%3% A £ Y zs 9 {5l 52 P P 22 A /O R

Customer X ZEX
Customer Y zZPY
Customer Z =Pz

m -
2016 2015
= “T-nF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
115,672 118,327
105,591 138,227
83,442 92,317
304,705 348,871
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA~ Htl A R Wz

GAINS
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WAEBHBEERERE ZITTNENE
allowances for returns and trade discounts. HERBEEEEF -
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as REBWA - B A RIKZES AT -
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBET T
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HEER 831,149 798,861
Other income and gains = PN TS
Subsidy received B U BL 2,161
Interest income FE A 223
Gain upon expiry of warrants (note 26(d)) 2| HIR MR BU S (F5E26(d)) 7,959
Gain from sale of materials MRHEE R 1,094
Rental income AEWA 438
11,875
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Sl
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRPATFIE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: NEE BT ATFE & TR IE
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B eE AR®T T ARKETTT
Costs of inventories sold BEHFERE 385,453 347,989
Depreciation e 13 32,017 27,354
Amortisation of prepaid land lease HisTas LS F0E
payments 14 1,080 510
Minimum lease payments under KEHEETHBERE &
operating leases regarding plant HENREHEEHE
and machinery 2,242
Auditor’s remuneration EED BN & 1,770
Employee benefit expenses BERAAXL
(excluding directors’ remuneration):  (TEIEEEHL) :
- Wages and salaries —IENHS 18,681
— Pension scheme contributions — RIRESFEIHER 2,729
21,410
Research and development costs ot B R B A AR 46,773
Donations B 100
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®WERAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BRER AT ¢
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBET T
Interest on bank loans RITERF B 32,609
Interest on finance leases mEHEEF S -
32,609
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31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERBERETHRAELZ
<=

BEBIMESF MR EMRE
A1)~ &FA& R A& 5 2£383(1)(@)  (b)
COkMHERAR (HBEEEMNZER) A
PIE—FEENFEESERERITRA
BFEEIINT -

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T

Fees e 481
Other emoluments: Hibf e -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RANEDRGS 396

Performance related bonuses FIAERE 2 fEAT 300

Pension scheme contributions RRE TSR 71

767

1,248
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e € )

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERBREITHRAERXZ
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION M (&)
(CONTINUED)

(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FREMNBILIIFRNTETZ2HESE
during the year were as follows: R
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —E-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Mr. Lei Jiaxiao EREEAE 80
Mr. Ma Chaosong BEAMAEE 80
Mr. Shen Zhenchang IR E S 80

240
There were no other emoluments payable to the RZE—REMN_T—HFAM
independent non-executive directors during the years EENEYIENITES 2 E B
2016 and 2015. € o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERBREITHRAERXZ
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION e (%)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) HMITES - FHTESR
director and the chief executive ESTHAER
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e BER 32 Rike

ik BEWRE  EBZRA EE 7 HedE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTRT  AR%T:R

2016 ZE-RE

Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BERARELE
Mr. Wang Chao gL

Non-executive director: HHITEE -

Mr. Zhang Bihong* RISL T

Mr. Sun Qingdong** AL
Chief executive: REITEAS -

Mr. Chen Weizhong RS L.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R Pf oE (48

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EEREBESTHAEZ
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION e (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) HMITES - FHTESR
director and the chief executive EETHBAE (&)

(Continued)

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e RER ) BINE
ik ENFlam 182 fEAL STEIM Weps
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARBTT  ARET:R

2015 —E-EF
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BERAREAE - 120 100 12 232
Mr. Wang Chao TilBEE - 9% 100 12 208
- 216 200 24 440
Non-executive director: HHITEE -
Mr. Zhang Bihong* RIRSL S 241 - - 35 276
Chief executive: RETEAS -
Mr. Chen Weizhong BRATE LA - 180 100 12 292
241 396 300 71 1,008
* Mr. Zhang Bihong resigned as a non-executive director of * RBAEERZT—RFAZT=
the Group on 23 June 2016. AREASBEERITES -
= Mr. Sun Qingdong was appointed as a non-executive - BREAREERZT—R"FRAZ+=
director of the Group on 23 June 2016. AEZEAREEFENTES -
There was no arrangement under which executive RoEB—RNEM-_E—RERNBEHT
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration EBEWERRSRET A T

during the years 2016 and 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid individuals during the year included three
directors (2015: four), details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two
(2015: one) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor
chief executive of the Company are as follows:

9. LEREHES

FR IEARRFEREE=2EF (=
TRF M%) EMEHBENLEX
HIFE8 - RARBIFFERNIFRERITHA
BZEBME (Z2—HF: —R) &S

FREBZMEFBET
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - ZBEREWH

Performance related bonuses FIBMEEE 2 TEAL
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIHER

135

12

147

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is
as follows:

MENTFUATHENFEE M ERHTT
BABz&=HEEAZMT

Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AK¥1,000,0007T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e € )

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group was not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands.

The corporate income tax of the Group in respect of its
operations in Mainland China has been provided at the rate of
25% (2015: 25%) on the taxable profits, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the approval from the National Office of Leading
Group for Administration of Hi-tech Enterprise Recognition,
Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery Co., Limited and Huzhou Laohenghe
Wine Co., Limited, both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, were granted the “New and Advanced Technology
Enterprise” status and were entitled to the preferential tax rate of
15% for the three consecutive years commencing from 2016.

10. FIEHMAX

AEBARAEEKE RRMEREE
KB BDERE R AT E £ S RE AE
RERBEEGWNMEN BRERSES
RAINCER - AEEBABMRFESE
SMEH -

ERASEEFBERMELERNDER
BF CERBHEBRTEIZ  RER
BHIRTE25% (ZE—TE : 25%) ¥
FERTA R ME L B4 -

BREZHGHIRMEEREERITHESE
BB AEH LB M EEM
BEBRARBMEZEFIBZARAD
A (ZEARARRNZEWNBRR) #
B ex] £ A7 —F—
NEREBE=FFEZR15%NEEH

2016 2015
= —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Current — PRC BNER —
Charge for the year FAZH
Deferred (note 23) PRIE (F7E23)

42,721
3,446

FRBTE AR

Total tax charge for the year

46,167

ZENMEERAT —B-REER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1 5 R b et (4@

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. Fr8®ipxx (&)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit HREARRQB KD BB R B FTEBE
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction where most of BERAEEMEAENSR B AR EE B
the Company’s subsidiaries are located to the tax expense at the MATERAY B ER R R ENRE
effective tax rate is as follows: FZHEERENT :
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-ARF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥T R % AREBTT %
Profit before tax PR AT A 247,955 274,695
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEERETENRIE 61,989 . 68,674 25.0
Lower tax rate enacted by the 75 BT 8 R Y
local authority AR B R (21,612) (25,787) (9.4)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the &7 [E o B 40 T /B
distributable profits of the Group’s ARA 2 IRFE10%
subsidiaries in Mainland China STEENREE 4,013 : 6,010 2.2
Tax incentive on eligible expenditures ABEBEMASZ ZHEGESR (3,132) (2,765) (1.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax Fifs AT 40R A B 2 61 35 -

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate IR AREE BT X

AERBBE Y N 46,167 16.8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B ¥5 ¥R R Bl 51 (48

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Proposed final - RMB7.2 cents BERRNHR - SREER

(2015: RMBS8.8 cents) per ARBT7T2H0 (ZZE—FH4F -

ordinary share AR#8.85) 45,650

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The 2015 proposed final dividends of RMB45,650,000 were approved
by Company'’s shareholders at the annual general meeting on 31 May
2016 and were subsequently distributed in June 2016.

FAZBRRREAFARRRRRLE
ERRBERG LHAETAEER -

TE-AHFERERIREARE
45,650,000 B ER R AIRRAR ZE—X
FRA=ZT - HEARNBRRBEFAE LHt
o WHERN B RFRARE -

ZENMEERAT —B-REER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. B R RIERREEREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EESIRER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based SREABNESENETENET QT
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of ﬂﬁ;mg SEHEAEEERAMBEBEEARNS
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares X 17 X 3@ IR NN A F 15 81538,041,096%
of 538,041,096 (2015: 518,750,000) in issue during the year. —Z—H4% : 518,750,000 ) -
2016 2015
—E—RF —T—hF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BRaEBE=REE AEGERE
holders of the parent (RMB’000) (AR®BFT) 206,636 228,528
Weighted average number of ordinary BT @ERMETAH (FR)
shares in issue (in thousands) 538,041 518,750

a2

AR EBESHAEARGSRAT

Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

- Basic and diluted (RMB) —HEAREE (ARE) 38.4 cents 44 1 cents
38.4% 4419
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share HREBE-ZE—R"EFEk-_ZT—HF+=
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2016 A=+— EIJJ:EJ*IE/%EET%%AZFE
and 2015 in respect of a dilution as the group has no potential BB BT MARAR G - AR & [ 30 A g
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years. BEMHEBATEZY cBRERER
SRELTAE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e € )

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BE R &E

Machinery  Furniture
and and Motor ~ Leasehold Construction
Buildings equipment fixtures vehicles improvements in progress Total
BT HELZE HGAREE RE HEWELE ERIR -
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR AR%Tn ARETR ARETR AR%Tx

31 December 2016 ZE-NE
tZA=t-R
At 1 January 2016 RZE—"E-A-H:
Cost BR 316,171 199,127 4,558 2,081 15,990 145,587 683,514
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (29,798) (19,742 (1,179) (1,435) (1,804) - (53,958)
Net carrying amount FHFE 286,373 179,385 3,379 646 14,186 145,587 629,556

At 1 January 2016, net of RZE-rE-A-R"

accumulated depreciation MR E:HTE 286,373 179,385 145,587 629,556
Additions TE 4,017 14,437 193,626 212,549
Depreciation provided FNRERE
during the year (16,167) (13,840) - (32,017)
Transfers Fibd 142,930 44 (143,371) -
At 31 December 2016, WZE-—RE
net of accumulated +ZA=+-H"
depreciation N 2:E 417,153 180,423 195,842 810,088
At 31 December 2016: RIE-—RE
TZA=t-8:
Cost A 463,118 214,005 4,977 2,131 15,990 195,842 896,063
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE (45,965) (33,582) (1,630) (1,635) (3,163) - (85,975)
Net carrying amount FEEE 417,153 180,423 3,347 496 12,827 195,842 810,088
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W¥ - BER®EHE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Machinery Furniture
and and Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures vehicles  improvements  in progress Total
BF BEkEE HIREE "B REWEEE FRIRE @t
RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
AEBTT ARETR ARBTT AESTT AREBTn ARETR AR%T:
1 January 2015 —E-1f-f-H
At 1 January 2015: RZZ-R§F-A-H:
Cost A 307,002 180,945 3971 2,081 15,990 18,108 528,097
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (12,946)  (11,089) (832) (1,292) (445) - (26,604)
Net carrying amount RETE 294,056 169,856 3,139 789 15,545 18,108 501,493
At 1 January 2015, net of WZE-RF-fA-H"
accumulated depreciation Billi S 204,056 169,856 3,139 789 15,545 18,108 501,493
Additions NE 3,061 10,162 587 - - 141,607 165,417
Depreciation provided FRHERE
during the year (16,852) (8,653) (347) (143) (1,359) - (27,354)
Transfers B 6,108 8,020 - - - (14,128) -
At 31 December 2015, R=E-1F
net of accumulated +ZR=+-8"
depreciation NRZHTE 286,373 179,385 3,379 646 14,186 145,587 629,556
At 31 December 2015: RZZ-RfF
T-A=Z+-8B:
Cost AR 316,171 199,127 4,558 2,081 15,990 145,587 683,514
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (29,798) (19,742) (1,179) (1,435) (1,804) - (53,958)
Net carrying amount RETE 286,373 179,385 3,379 646 14,186 145,587 629,556

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s buildings and
machinery and equipment with an aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB97,201,000 (2015: RMB74,564,000) was
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 21(b)).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s machinery and
equipment with a net carrying amount of RMB50,487,000
(2015:RMB55,103,000) were held under finance leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R Pf oE (48

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. At #thfHEFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR T T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HKNEREE 27,333 27,843
Additions during the year RERNRE 25,969 -
Amortised during the year JARESNE: 5! (1,080) (510)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—H/EREE 52,222 27,333
Less: Current portion included in B FTATER IR ek

prepayments, deposits and H b e IE R RN B

other receivables (1,187) (650)
Non-current portion IETREN D 51,035 26,683
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held HET AR PBE A - WRERAHE
under a long term lease. COES RS
Leasehold land of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount RZE-—RE+ZA=+—0 &x&H
of approximately RMB40,350,000 as at 31 December 2016 — g BR M B B 4 & A K %40,350,0007T
(2015: RMB11,243,000) has been pledged to secure bank loans (ZZ2—RF : AR®11,243,0000) 2
granted to the Group (note 21(b)). HELHEARTAEERITER &

R (Mf3E21(b)) ©

HENMEERAT —EB-AFER 137



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 55 ¥R e B 5 (£8)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

15. INVENTORIES 15. &&
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—AfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Raw materials R R 11,894 8,069
Work in progress RS 1,049,493 921,174
Finished goods X 27,053 16,226

1,088,440 945,469

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB525,343,000 (2015: RMB366,103,000) were
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group, as further
detailed in note 21(b) to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB916,910,000 (2015: RMB817,014,000) were base

RZZE—RE+_-_A=+—8  ~5E
IR E E 2 A R#525,343,0007T (=
T—FF: AR366,103,0007T) HI1F
& EABRTAEERITERNER
S HBHRIEREME21(0)

R-ZE—RFE+-_A=+—8 K&EH
BRMEE A AR916,910,0000T (—ZZ —

wine. TE : AR®S817,014,0007T) HEE A
FR o
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. EWWE ZFE
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Trade receivables B E 57208 m 141,959

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally one to three months.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e € )

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 16. FEW S 55| (4&)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at the REBARERREIKRE HRIBIREE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HERBREE DT T
follows:
2016 2015
ZE-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T ARBT T

Within 1 month & A LARA 119,143 82,014
1 to 3 months 12318 A 41,957 57,482
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 498 1,087
6 months to 1 year 61E A =14 459 1,007
Over 1 year 15 414 369
162,471 141,959
An aging analysis of the trade receivables, based on the credit & 5 & 48 & FE AR 39 TR B B R E 1) FE UL
terms, that are neither individually nor collectively considered to B SR IREERERARROITOT

be impaired, is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Neither past due nor impaired BR e B TR R E 161,100 139,496
Less than 3 months past due B HA D 31E A 498 1,087
3 to 6 months 3% 61E A 247 728
6 months to 1 year 6lE A ZE14 234 298
Over 1 year 1F A+ 392 350

162,471 141,959
The trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired BLéma i R ER U E 5 58 E
relate to a number of diversified customers for whom there was HAIARBRFAER  HERNOLHTEED
no recent history of default. TR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 ==&

16.

17.

—RNE+=—A=+—H

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade receivables with a
carrying amount of RMB23,100,000 (2015: nil) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group, as further detailed in
note 21(b) to the financial statements.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

16.

17.

FEWE 58 ()

£ 760 50 3 S OB B A FE M 5 SRR R 8K
HEFPAM  RERAEEZMNRLE
Rif - RENERER  EZRR/EEER
BEUEEANE  BREERTDRE
AR E - Bt BRI S ERIEL
BMEREE AEBYERZSERER
E (T30 dn SR ER EL A B 5 B AR A0
fEht

R-ZBE—XRE+_-_A=+—"8 Kx&£E
?&#EEE@%AE%QNOOOOOEL
T-NF B NEWESHIE  ERAE
FAEERITEROER ﬁ FelE
R BIREMFE21(b)

EARE -BER
FE W 5k 18

Ht

TER A
&@&Eﬁﬁ%m

Prepayments
Deposits and other receivables

2016 2015
At 2 —hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
76,684 55,106
116,702 194,173
193,386 249,279

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e € )

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. BEREBEZEEBYRE

AND TIME DEPOSITS HFE®
2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBET T

Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHES 291,815 186,048
Time deposits THEFER 228,410 2,874
520,225 188,922
Less: o
Pledged for bank loans (note 21(b)) EIPLAEEERTTE R (B3E21(0)) (159,014) -
Non-pledged time deposits with original  RESRE R =8 A £ 2| 298y
maturity of over three months when L F BiTE X
acquired (69,396) (2,874)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEED 201,815 186,048
Denominated in RMB IAREE 290,396 184,698
Denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (HK$) LA Tt (B7t) 5HAE 1,212 1,350
Denominated in USD AZETTEHE 207 -
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEEEY 291,815 186,048
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, ARBTEEBHABKNEMER - A
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations i AR A M KON AR ) &
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign (BEE  BEELRNEETERTE) ~A5H
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB AlEBER L L IINEEBIRITHA
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign REHBAEMER -

exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRSERESARTFERANETE
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are BF BRI R BRENF B o SRITHE R T B
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of TFRIYIF R B s R IR AL 8% 2 15
default. FARFEVERTT ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

19. TRADE PAYABLES 19. B E 5 FIE
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the R EHREMNE S RIELEZA SN
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRER D ATIOT -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Within 3 months 31E A AR 95,330 50,338
3 to 6 months 3Z=6MEA 25,599 17,704
Over 6 months 6fE A LA - 22,890 50,417

143,819 118,459
Trade payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and are REBENESZRBETHNERBEE
normally settled on terms of one to six months. The carrying R—ZEZEXREARNLES - BNESHFIEN
amounts of the trade payables approximate to their fair values. BREEHEAEAFEES ©

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 20. HttFEAFRIER FESTIE R

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Advances from customers TEUER K 4,547
Other payables HoAth FE A 5B 37,425
Accruals FEFTIEE 13,875

55,847
All these balances are non-interest-bearing and other payables FTERZRSHBIE TS - HMEKIE
have an average term of three months. FHERA=M@A -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e € )

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 21. Gt EHRITRHEMMEBR
OTHER BORROWINGS
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-TF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity RMB’000 rate (%)  Maturity RMB ‘000
BRAE%) HH ARBTRT  EEFE%) ARETT

Current il
Bank loans - secured®®l RAER - B0 3.92-5.70 754,560 5.80-7.20 2016 549,760
R0
Finance lease payables® [ERREREFED 5.99 22,704 599 2016 20,585
(note 22) (Mis2) Ik
771,264 570,345
Non-current FEH
Bank loans - secured?® BITER - B0 : 60,000 6.00 2017 40,000
I
Finance lease payables® [ERREREFED L 11,728 599  2017-2018 34,415
(note 22) (M7E22) —Z-tF%
ZEN\E
71,723 74,415
Total @t 848,987 644,760
Analysed into: AT
Bank loans repayable: EEBRTER:
Within one year R—FR 754,560 549,760
In the second year F-ER 60,000 40,000
814,560 589,760
Finance lease payables: ERBERETA
Within one year g 22,704 20,585
In the second year F-ER 11,723 22,692
In the third year EZER - 11,728
34,427 55,000
Total a5t 848,987 644,760
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

21.

22,

INTEREST-BEARING BANK
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s banking facilities amounted
to RMB882,560,000 (2015: RMB944,520,000), of which
RMB814,560,000 (2015: RMB589,760,000) had been utilised.

(b) At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets

were pledged to banks and other lender for securing the bank
loans and other finance leases granted to the Group.

The carrying values of these assets are:

Property, plant, and equipment Y - BB KEE
Leasehold land MELT
Inventories &

Trade receivables FEME 5 5k18
Pledged deposits [REERVES

All the Group’s bank and other borrowings are denominated
in RMB. The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings approximate to their fair values.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leased certain of its machinery and equipment in 2015
and these leases are classified as finance leases with remaining
lease terms of 2 years (2015:3 years) as at 31 December 2016.

The balances represent loan borrowed by way of the following
sales and leases back arrangements: with the principal amount
of RMB55,000,000 and bearing effective interest at a fixed rate
of 5.99% per annum. The Group provided a guarantee deposit of
RMB5,500,000 and paid a service fee of RMB1,245,000 to the
lessor. The loan will mature on 29 December 2018.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016

L= /= =,
2. GFERBITRAEMER
=
(&)
MaE
(a) R—_E—XRE+=-_RA=+—8"
AEBRTHREFEAARE
882,560,0007T (ZZ—H%F : ARK
944,520,0007T) * WEEBAEF KA
FR#814,560,0007 (ZF—FF : A
R #589,760,0007T) °
(b) RMERK AEBAETEERFF
RITREMEERS tEARTASEE
RITESKEMBERE 2 EIR -
ZEEBEZEEER
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E ARETR ARET T
13 97,201 74,564
14 40,350 11,243
15 525,343 366,103
16 23,100 -
18 159,014 -
845,008 451,910
AEEMARITREMETRIAARE
AHE - AEBFITEEMERNERE
BENFERSE -
=t > = o
22, BMEHEENSRIE

ARER-_T-RFHER THRBNR
B-N=ZE-—RFT-_A=+—0" 1t
SHENHAREMNE  MRBEHMF
“E-RF:ZHF)o

EHREERUTHERR T BE2
Bk AR &8 A R#55,000,0007T# &
EERFFES99%:8 - AEBERT
THARMEIRE 2 AR BS5,500,0007T & 2
IR % & A R #1,245,0007T ° It B B 3
BRZE—N\F+A=+HEH -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e € )

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

22. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

According to the sales and lease back agreements, if no default
occurs during the lease term, the ownership of the plant and
machinery shall be automatically transferred to the lessee at a
price of RMB100.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s machinery and
equipment with a net carrying amount of RMB50,487,000
(2015:RMB55,103,000) were held under finance leases.

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments
under finance leases and their present values were as follows:

Amounts payable: JEFT5RIA -
Within one year R—FRA
In the second year EZFR
In the third year EZER

REREEERIRER
B&RE S

Total minimum finance lease payments
Future finance charges

Total net finance lease payables BB E R B TR AT

Portion classified as current liabilities PEAERHEEDH
(note 21) (BfE21)
Non-current portion (note 21) ERE D (FFE21)

22,

Minimum
lease
payments
RIEHEE
A

2016
—E-RE
RMB’000
ARBT R

36,517

(2,090)

34,427

(22,704)

11,723

MEMEREMRE (H)

BEHEERE B WHBATEE
o AIBEREESZ FTEEBIEARE
10072 B BB EAMA

R-ZB—XRE+-_A=+—H0 X&£H
BREREHREREZHRRERREZERD
B A AR #50,487,0000 (ZF—F
F : AR¥55,103,0007T) °

RZE—AR"F+ZA=+—8 " BE#H
AMEzBEREESEHRBERERER
BT :
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease
payments  payments payments
RIEEE RIEHEE REEE
FUE REZRE FEZHE
2015 2016 2015
“E-RF ZE-x"Ff ZZT—AHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB' 000
ARBTT AR¥®TR ARETR

22,850
24,276
12,229

22,692

55,000

(20,585)

ZENMEERAT —B-REER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 23. EEFHIEBEEE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the BIERBEEBELREERERNZEHUT

year are as follows:

Accruals  Withholding

Unrealised and other tax on

profit/ deductible distributable

(loss) on temporary dividends
inventories  differences (Note a) Total

EiRER BETSR

AERFE  HAWTEN REZENH
B/ (FR) ERMEER (Mizta) #ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREBFTr ARETR

At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—FF—F—H 327 - (8,751) (8,424)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRRBRERFA S (F1R) 2

the statement of profit or loss BRI (H13E10)

during the year (note 10) 661 1,903 (6,010) (3,446)
Net deferred tax liabilities as RZZE-AF+=A=+—H

At 31 December 2015 and k-T—RE—A—HZ

1 January 2016 ERIEE ESE 988 1,003 (14,761) (11,870)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRMBRRA S (IR) 2

to the statement of profit or loss BRI (FFE10)

during the year (note 10) (623) 398 (4,013) (4,238)
Net deferred tax liabilities RZZ—RF+=A=1—H

at 31 December 2016 ZIRERIEA B 365 2,301 (18,774) (16,108)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e € )

31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

Note a:

Note b:

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if
there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities of RMB75,097,000 (31 December
2015: RMB59,045,000) in respect of temporary differences
relating to the unremitted profits of subsidiaries amounting to
RMB750,970,000 (31 December 2015: RMB590,453,000), that
would be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as
the Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it is probable that these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

23. EEBIHEAE (&)

fifita: REBEPEARKMBEEEMSHL -
KBRS INE R E DK RE
SMEEE T IRA S AR R10%TR
et - EEREE _TENF - —
BREXN  BEAR-_ZTLF+=
A=1t—RB&2ZEF - WP BAE
FIMREEFRBER DA R LB
1G4 - AR T ABRER TR XK -
RALEMS  EAKRER10% - A
It AEBEAEERNPEAMLKT
ZEZEMBRAN-_TENF—A—
HEEEZBNADIKZESHNTE
B -

R-ZE—RF+-A=+—80 @R
RAGEHZEHE QRN E K
® o BZSEFBERTRRRAETS
ik - BUAN 52 B 4 R 3R R R
BRELANBENBARREHFBEA
R#750,970,0007T (ZZE—AF+=
A=+—8: AR®590,453,0007T)
ZEREEERAECRBEEBAR
75,097,000 (ZE—HFE+ = A
=+—8 : AR#59,045,0007T) °
Mizb: AHESIR  BETEERBELEERS
BEERPFBARRERFEN - LTAR
SEZETHBLEHRTHERE RS

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the A
consolidated statement financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the 7
consolidated statement financial position

JEFIRE EFAR

JERR B E R

REAHERRKRFERZ

R
pid
FAEPBRRKRPER
iR

FTYED AT -

2016 2015

e e
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
2,666 2,891
(18,774) (14,761)
(16,108) (11,870)

ZENMEERAT —B-REER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

24. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

24, HhRHEE

Notes

P =E
Other long term payables H & B FR0E (a)
Special payables FETHIEFIR (b)

On 6 May 2016, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
Huzhou Chen Shi Tian Niang Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd (the “Huzhou Chenshi”) and Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery
Co., Limited (“Huzhou Laohenghe”, which is also the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Huzhou Chenshi) entered into an investment
agreement with China Development Fund Co., Ltd (“CD Fund”)
(BEFZERESEMRAF) (the “Investment Agreement” ). Pursuant
to the Investment Agreement, CD Fund agreed to subscribe for
3.5% of equity interest of Huzhou Laohenghe for a total cash
consideration of RMB133 million (the “Capital Investment”) and
Huzhou Laohenghe shall pay CD Fund fix annual return equal to
1.2% of the Capital Investment from the date of the agreement.
In additions, Huzhou Chenshi has contractual obligation to
repurchase all the equity interest of Huzhou Laohenghe held by
CD Fund within 8 years according to the repayment schedule
under the Investment Agreement. Further details of the Investment
Agreement have been disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 9 May 2016 and 29 June 2016, respectively.

As Huzhou Chenshi does not have the unconditional right to
avoid delivering cash to CD Fund pursuant to the Investment
Agreement, the Capital Investment of RMB133 million was
recorded as a financial liability.

The balance of other long term payables was analysed as follows:

2016 2015
—E-KRF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
133,000 -
4,333 4,505
137,333 4,505

RZZB-—RFREARNE  KRFHRME
2 & KB A B MR KRB B IR 5
AERE (DHMERER]D) FOsMZ
BABEERAR (DHMEEM]
TRRHMBRENZEN B AR) £E
MEREZSERLA ((ERERE
&) AT AEBFE (DTEBZED -
BRIEFIEGZ  BERERASREN
ARK1BBEETHRSAERERE
WM Z B3N BAERE ([EA
BALD - f#AMEEMEARZH#ER
HESFRAENERRA2%HE
EeHEABRERESINER - U1t
Sh o INERECEE S BT - ARE
TEMHENEREEERNN\FANED
HFERESAERHMZENNE
AR - BRTEBENE—F
HEBEEDBRBERNALARESMR-F
—RERANAR-FE-RERAZ
THEH R -

HRHMNRET ERBFEHZER
MEBERAERES MRS HOE KR
A AHARKI3EE THENE
AWREASHEAE -

Hit R EENRBLHRODTOT

2016
—EB-RF

RMB’000
ARET T

Amounts repayable: JEMEEFRIA
Beyond five years AFENUE
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24. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 24, EMHRHIEE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) As at 31 December 2016, the actuarial liabilities existing in (b) RZE—R"F+A=+—8 8
relation to the retirement benefit obligations for employees who T2 g A% B U BE N Z B NEE & B IR
retired prior to the acquisition of Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery Co., NAEIFIRANEEMEREHETR
Limited by the controlling shareholders and the early retirement RERKEENRERKRECHFE
obligations for employees who early retired were RMB4,333,000 MIBE & A5 ARR4,333,0007T (=
(2015: RMB4,505,000). The benefit obligations arising from the T —FF : AR¥4,5050007T) © 5F
plans were unfunded. SEENBIEETARETES -

The movements of the actuarial liabilities recognised in the R EARR TR NIRBEE F AT B R

statement of financial position are as follows: BEZEOT :

2016 2015
—E-KRF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Carrying amount at beginning of year FYINERAE 4,684

Benefits paid [=EREERY (179)

As at end of year REER 4,505

The discount rates and the principal actuarial assumptions for Tl E TR EREETERBEREROT

the above obligations are as follows:

2016 2015
—EB-RE —ET-RF
Discount rates: BEIH =

Medical benefits BEREN 3% 4%
Survivor pension HE | & 2.9%-3.5% 2.7%-2.9%

Average annual benefit increase: FEFHEFIEM
Medical benefits BEEA 0%-4% 0%-4%
Survivor pension AN & 15% 15%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

87 55 ¥ e B 51 (48

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. B
Shares [N
2016 2015
—E-RF 0T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREF T
Authorised: JETE ¢
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0000%
US$0.0005 (RMB0.00305) each GARE{E0.0005% T
(AFR#0.003057T)
2 SRR 3,050
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBE
578,750,000 (2015: 518,750,000) 578,750,0000%
ordinary shares of —ZT—Fh%F :518,750,000)
US$0.0005 (RMB0.00305) each HAREE0.0005FE T
(AR#0.003057T)
2 B 1,584
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 25. BB (4&)
Shares (Continued) A (&)
A summary of movement in the Company’s issued share capital RNANT D EBETIRA LRG3 EERES EHE
and share premium account are as follows: T
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
BRI BRI R
ROEE [ EBE @zt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  AREBTR

At 1 January 2015 RZE-HF—HA—H 518,750,000 1,684 769,489 771,073

Final 2014 dividend declared BER-Z—NFRHEBE - - (61,875) (61,875)

At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 ~ A-ZE—RF+-_A=1+—-0K

—2-~F-A—H 518,750,000 1,584 717,614 719,198
Issue of shares (Note) BT (Bf3E) 60,000,000 183 304,507 304,690
Share issue expense (Note) BRI (i) - - (113) (113)
Final 2015 dividend declared BER-Z-—hFRHAKE - - (45,600) (45,650)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB—"F+-A=1—H 578,750,000 1,767 976,358 978,125
Note: On 23 June 2016, 60,000,000 new shares were issued and sk : RZZ—R"FANAZ+=H ' AQ7
allotted by the Company to an independent third party at % 5 186.00% T (A R ¥5.0870) 2
the subscription price of HK$6.00 (RMB5.08) per share. The REER—BBLE = HBITREE
proceeds of RMB183,000 representing the par value were 60,000,000 ¥TAX 15  FTB AR
credited to the Company’s issued capital. The remaining proceeds #183,0007T (HHEREME) Bt AR
of RMB304,507,000, after netting-off the share issue expense of NAEIZBEITRA - R THTEREA
RMB113,000, were credited to the share premium account. R #304,507,0007t (IK$5A% 19 3776
= AR¥118,0007T ) B ARG &
B -
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26. RESERVES 26. f#fE

REBRAFTERBAFENHFEBSRE
N H SR B 75 ¥R 3k 5588 B £89 8 A 4R

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

152

statement of changes in equity on pages 88 to 89 of the financial AEZFHRANZTY -
statements.
(@) Merger reserve (a) EBHEE

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the Company’s shares of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s
cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under the principles
of the pooling-of-interests method.

BHRERERERERZSFHERA
AR B RE AR T YRR B /B X B B9
R TE AR AR A )UK B
DR HIPRA R EHE

(b) Capital reserve (b) EXfFHE
Capital reserve arises from the capital contribution by the BAREBEIYRKE AR AR
controlling shareholders of the Company. RETEEE -

(c) Statutory surplus reserve (c) ZEERERRE
Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus BEREMEEBEZSATRGHES
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant PRC ThiB R B A AR R AR A K&
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the AR B R B A S A M B R B Y
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC, and are M ERREAET  WAHRBE
approved by the respective boards of directors. ESS - Ea- a0

(d) Warrant reserve (d) RREZREE

Warrant reserve represents the proceeds received from
the placing of unlisted warrants of the Group. Warrants
expired on 2 September 2015 and a gain upon expiry was
recognised in other income and gains in year 2015 (note
5).
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28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2016 —Z—~F+—-_A=+—H

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 27. EEEH
Details of the Group’s bank loans which are secured by the BREANAEBREEFKBHRNEEIRT
assets of the Group are included in note 21(b) to the financial BEXRFESRNR P ERENE21(0b) °
statements.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 28. R&HERH
The Group leases certain of its properties and equipment AREBREBELKEHELTHHERE TWME
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and B - MELREFEONREHRBENF—
equipment are negotiated for terms ranging between one and ten E
years.
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease R-ZE—XRE+-_A=+—"8  x&£E
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as RIBF Bz T MEgEHES 2R
follows: KRR EFHIB@REW T ¢
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—h%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Within one year —FNRN 971
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEZFEFAFAN (RIEERMTE) 1,752
After five years AFE 1,572
4,295

ZENMEERAT —B-REER
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B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

29.

30.

COMMITMENTS 29. A4

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
28 above, the Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

B £ P E28F &l 1O 48 2 M & AR
Sh REBRIBEHIREA T 5 E A

=

2016 2015
ZE-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBT T

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI AVBRFHEREE
Plant and machinery R M 25

30,156

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30.

(@) Outstanding balances with related parties

The Group had no outstanding balance due to its related
parties as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(b) Compensation for key management personnel (including
directors’ remuneration) of the Group:

HEBRLIRS

(a) EEEBL 2 REBGEER
R-ZB-—ARFEN_F-—RFt=
A=+—R AEEHEENRA
B 77 2 RIEIBKERR -

(b) #*AEEIEZEBASHNHS (B

REEMS) -
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e REEREME

in kind 588
Performance related bonuses FIAMHR 2 TEAL 300
Pension scheme contributions RSB 59
Total compensation paid to IRNTEETEAENMSRE

key management personnel 947

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to the financial statements.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 3. BEREINEMTA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial LR TANREHRZERENT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets cREE
2016 2015
—E—REF ZET—AF
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
-£7952 Bk
WA FEYRIE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Trade receivables JEURE 5 7R 162,471 141,959
Financial assets included in deposits AR S R H MR W RIER

and other receivables TREE 20,070 106,520
Time deposits TEHITF K 69,396 2,874
Pledged deposits [mEzwieE7¢ 159,014 -
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeZEEY 291,815 186,048

702,766 437,401
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31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 31.
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

RERHNEIWNERTA
(%)

eHBaE
2016 2015
—E—AE T —AhF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost
1R 8 A A REERR
JIRMEMEE JIRNeREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

Trade payables FERE 5508

Financial liabilities included in other SFAEMEMRELEFEEN
payables and accruals ERAE

Financial liabilities included in other FFARMRHEENERAR

long term liabilities
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 848 1T & E b f& 5

143,819 118,459

17,512 22,758

133,000 -
848,987 644,760

1,143,318 785,977

32. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 32.

As part of its normal business, the Group entered into a
trade receivable factoring arrangement (the “Arrangement”)
and transferred certain trade receivables to banks. Under the
Arrangement, the Group has retained the substantial risks
and rewards, which include default risks relating to such trade
receivables, and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full
carrying amounts of the trade receivables. Subsequent to the
transfer, the Group did not retain any rights on the use of trade
receivables, including the sale, transfer or pledge of the trade
receivables to any other third parties. As at 31 December 2016,
the original carrying value of the trade receivables transferred
under the Arrangement that have not been settled amounted to
RMB23,100,000 (2015: nil), of which carrying amounts that the
Group continued to recognise was RMB23,100,000 (2015: nil),
and that of the associated liabilities was RMB17,800,000 (2015:
nil).
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, pledged deposits,
and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors review and
agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to the foreign currency risk mainly arising
from changes in the exchange rate of USD against RMB. The
Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk based on
the consideration that the foreign currency transactions are not
significant to the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not expose to the
foreign currency risk because majority of its financial instruments
were conducted in RMB.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ER R B 5E (48)

31 December 2016 —Z— ~F+—-_A=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. MKEBEEREFERK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES K (&)
(CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) ShuEE B (48)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRETNEMBHEMESRAEZITEZNE
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the MT o NEBBRTAIFE (AREKEE
USD exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of LBEMNATFEZESESL) AR AREBRE
the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of S RREHRETIERATELHIENS
monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity. BEEBNERE -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in foreign before tax
currency rate and equity
BB AT

SBEE FERER
A (FR) & CRD)
% RMB’000

% ARETT

2016 —E-RE
If USD weakens against RMB METHARERE
If USD strengthens against RMB WETHAREAE
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk

A major concentration of credit risk arises from the Group’s
exposure to a substantial number of trade receivables, other
receivables, time deposits, and cash and cash equivalents.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and derived from
revenue earned from customers in the PRC, which exposes the
Group to credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that the sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit limit, and has strict control over credit limits
of trade and other receivables. In addition, the balance of trade
receivables is monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. Further quantitative
data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are disclosed in notes 16 and 17
above.

Cash and time deposits are mainly deposited with registered
banks in Mainland China. The Group has policies to limit its credit
exposure to any financial institutions and management believes
these financial institutions are of high credit quality.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables,
time deposits, and cash and cash equivalents included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
The Group has no other financial assets which carry significant
exposure to credit risk.
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B 5 ER R B 5E (48)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and have available funding through capital
contribution and bank loans.

The maturity profile of financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

At 31 December 2016

On  Less than
demand 3 months

RERE  =@AR
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR

Trade payables BB S5E
Financial liabilities included in ATAE MR TUER
other payables and accruals EAEEMSREE
Financial liabilities included in SAEMREEER
in other long term liabilities HER
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMER
other borrowings 132,651

245,493

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2016

33. XREKREEBEEZERK
K (&)

o7 B 1 L B
AEEORRARBARORERRS

EFEVMABRIERRITEFTREES °

RBEHR - HEATNERBBENTRS
EMNERaEnISERmT

R=ZZB-XRF+=HA=t+—H

3to 1to5 Over
12 months years 5 years Total
G ES
=R -%£EIf RENUE @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR

143,819

17,512

134,463 134,463

668,470 877,230

668,470 134,463 1,173,024
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt includes trade
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and other long term liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital represents total equity of the Company.
The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable
level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
are as follows:

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. I BEREEEERK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES *® (&)
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEMER R (&)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—HF+-_A=+—H
On Less than 3to 1t05
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
“@AzE
REXKE =EAR TZEA —FZ=hF FaEy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARETT AR%®Trx ARETT ARETL
Trade payables ERE 508 68,122 50,337 - - 118,459
Financial liabilities included in P AR FE R
other payables and accruals EAEENSRERE - 22,758 - - 22,758
Interest-bearing bank and FRRITREMER
other borrowings - 84,714 504,671 77,836 667,221
68,122 157,809 504,671 77,836 808,438
Capital management BERER

AEBEAREENTIZERRERAE
BRBELERENARBRIRRNERL
K AXHEEBRABRRFMEAN
BE AEEZELANRNEE - A
EERFABELERRRE - RERFAFE
BARE AKERERABIN THER
EBE  REIIRA T AR BT

AEERBERNABLRERER &
e EAZR BB R A B RN B I LR EBE
g FREGEEREBNESFA  HME
NREREFIRE - FHERRITREAME
FAREMEREERRENEEEE
Yo BRBEARRMMAEZ - AEED
BREHEANBBLRGEFNGIEHK
FoRBEPRNEABBELRMT ¢
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. MKEBEEREFERK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES ® (&)
(CONTINUED)
Capital management (Continued) BEXRERE (&)
Group AEME
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Trade payables JERTE 5508 143,819 118,459
Other payables and accruals Hib e 8 N EETEE 78,510 55,847
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings £t/ 8817 K& H fb {& 3k 848,987 644,760
Other long term liabilities EtEHaE 137,333 4,505
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIBELEEY (291,815) (186,048)
Net debt EER 916,834 637,523
Total equity BRES 1,902,009 1,423,331
Net debt and total equity FEE MBS 2,818,843 2,060,854
Gearing ratio ARAFELE 33% 31%
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. &) T 2 Bk n &
OF THE COMPANY

REBEHR BEEARBUBMRARZ

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT
2016 2015
—E-RE 0T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBET T

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

RBEE
BNFIE - e MEb R

6,388 178

Due from a subsidiary JE U — I B A RIFRIA 1,000,421 689,193
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFEY 692 1,309
Total current assets MEEEMRE 1,007,501 690,680
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals ot T R R FERTIE B 50
Total current liabilities mEaERRE 50
NET CURRENT ASSETS AND BERBEERTFEE

NET ASSETS 1,007,447 690,630
EQUITY R
Share capital A& 1,767 1,584
Reserves (Note) e (M) 1,005,680 689,046
Total equity T 4878 1,007,447 690,630
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. A A T 2 B B R 7 &

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (4)
Note: fHsE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KATIHEBREHNOT :
Share Exchange
premium Warrant fluctuation Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
ROEER RRERRE EXRDRE 25tER @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETL ARBTT AREBTT ARETTT ARETTT

At 1 January 2015 R-E-h&—F—H 769,489 7,959 2,929 (73,721) 706,656
Total comprehensive income for the year FREGABALE - - 41,569 655 42,224
Expiry of warrants B - (7,959) - - (7,959)
2014 final dividend declared BEERZT-NERERE (51,875) - - - (51,879)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016~ A=Z—FE+-F=+—H
k=T-~"E—A—H 717,614 - 44,498 (73,066) 689,046
Total comprehensive income for the year FENGZEWALE - - 62,618 (4,728) 57,890
Issue of shares (note 25) BATRR (FIE25) 304,507 - - - 304,507
Share issue expenses (note 25) RRIDEITFY (MFE25) (113) - - - (13
2015 final dividend declared EER-_Z-RERERE (45,650) - - - (45,650)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"F+ZA=1+—-H 976,358 - 107,116 (77,794) 1,005,680
N,

35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 35. #HLETBRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EFEgOR T —tF-A=1+HH#HE
by the board of directors on 30 March 2017, MR TIETBRE -
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